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About MPS

The Medical Protection Society 1s the leading
provider of comprehensive professional indemnity
and expert advice to doctors, dentists and health
professionals around the world

We are a mutual, not-for-profit orgarisation offering
more than 265,000 members help with legal and
ethical problems that arise from their professional
practice This Includes clirical negligence claims,
complaints, medical council inquiries, fegal and
ethical dilemmas, disciplinary procedures, inquests
and fatal-accident inquiries

Fairness 1s at the heart of how we conduct our
business We actively protect and promote the
interests of members and the wider profession
Equaily, we beleve that patients who have suffered
harm from neghgent treatment should receive farr
compensation We promote safer practice by running
nsk management and education programmes 1o
reduce avoidable harm MPS 1s not an insurance
company

The benefits of membership are discretionary — this
altows us the flexibility to provide help and support
even In unusual circumstances




Chairman’s statement

It 1s unlikely to come as a surpnse to prachsing dectors and
dentists that, over the last year, demand for MPS services
continued to nse in most countnes tin which we operate | believe
this partly springs from tensions created by increased
professional regulation and accountability, at a time when
governments and insurers are demanding more from healthcare
on increasingly hrmited rescurces

We have also noticed a wormying recent nse in ovil dlams against
general practiioners in the UK Atthough many of these clams are for
relatvely small sums, associated legal expenditure remains stubbomly
high In addon, costs of defending members aganst vancus
discplinary tnbunals and regulatory bodies have continued to increase
strikengly, by 20-30% per annum over the last tenyears In the UK, the
GMC's fitness to practise panels now scrutinise the cenduct of more
than 300 doctors a year, in increasingly complex issues

For the doctor or dentist concemed, a clam or disgiplnary hearng
IS a hugely disrupive and distressing event MPS exists to offer the
strongest possible personal and professional support In these
situabions The member will usually need to attend several meetmgs
with ther legal team at censiderable inconvenience both to
themsetves and ther patents To meet this challenge we have
already expanded our exising offices in both Londen and Leeds
but, In order to provide a senace that 1s even more accessible,
especialy to members in Scotland, we opened an office In
Edinburgh in May We were delighted that Shella Mclean, Professor
of Law and Ethics n Medicine at the University of Glasgow, was able
to cut the proverbial nbbon at a ceremony that attracted many
distinguished members of the devolved Scottish health serace

MPS, as a mutual organisation, takes extreme care to invest
members’ funds so they may be relied upon when needed, possibly
many years in the future Two sinking cases are descnbed n a
recent 1ssue of our publication Gasebook where clams had to be
setfled ansing from incidents in the distant past In the first,
appendicths in a gl of seven was not treated N a tmely fashion,
resutting in stenlity which did not become evident until 22 years later
In the second, a woman whaose slipped femoral epiphyses were not
recognised throughout childhood and early adutt Ife subsequently
required bilateral hip replacerments at the age of just 35 These gaps
of more than 20 years between the doctors' ermors and subsequent
recognition of the resuting hamn are overwhelming arguments for
the MPS model of occurrence-based indemnity These doctors had
valid membership at the time of ther inactions and se did not need
to rely upon regularly renewing an insurance policy year after year,
never knowing when past mistakes might come back to haunt them
in the form of a sohctor's letter of clam

We al recognise that some doctors and dentists are more
conscientious than others | suspect that most who read this report
will not be surpnsed 1o lean that a minonty of members account for
a maonty of expendture on both claims and non-clams Some
members, who have not had occasion to cali on MPS services and
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so might consider themselves better doctors, or perhaps lucky,
resent paying the same subscnption as colleagues who make
considerable demands on our funds

Sorne doctors have suggested we charge subscnptions according
to a member’s clams and discipinary history — difficult, when there
can be a gap of more than 20 years for this history o be revealed
QOur prefemed approach, fully iIn keeping with the mutuality of MPS,
IS to make every attempt to support the doctor and show ways In
which nsks inherent in clirical practice may be reduced

Our expenence gves us a strong position from which 1o offer such
support Dunng 2008 we establshed a committee 1o oversee the
continuing expangon of our educational and nsk management
programme, chared by Dame Janet Husband, recently President of
the Royal College of Radiologists We are fortunate 1o have the
benefit of her skils and expenence in this field As part of this
programme we delvered a substantial number of workshops In
2009 to promote safer clinical practice

Much ihgaton spnngs from poor communication, and we place
paricular emphasis on Improving this Handovers have become a
growing problem as shift work 1s more common in hosprials The
GMC demands “clear cormmunication with healthcare colleagues”,
yet too often handovers congist of casual, throwaway remarks
Increasing use of telemedicine aiso brngs a raft of new pitfalls

Members will know that MPS indemrity 1s subject to the discration
of MPS Council This often allows us to support a member under
crrcumstances that ke outside the scope of an insurance policy’s
small pint However, we must exercise discretion in a manner that
1s far and equitable to all members, which can sometmes be
challengng We have established an ethical committee, drawn from
Councl and semor MPS staff, to offer expert oversight of the way
these decisions are made — and | believe this committee 15 making
an important contibution

Dunng the last year, Dr Alan Crouch, a general practtioner in
Yorkshire, stepped down as charman of our man medmcal
committee that adwses MPS file handlers on cwml clams He has
been succeeded by Miss Susan Sellers, Consultant Gynaecologist
and Cbstetncian in Bnstol  Susan has been Vice-Charman of the
committee since 2003, and we wish her well in her new role

Two medical members of Coundl retred in the summer, Professor
Sir Ravinder Mani and Dr Mark Dmwoodie, alihough Mark will be
continuing to contnbute to our educational programme We thank
themn for ther valuable contnbutions over the years In keeping with
our central ethos of “doctors for doctors”, we extend a wam
welcome to two new medical members of Council, Dr Yasmin
Drabu and Dr Mark Dawis

Nicholas Davies
Chasrrman of the Council
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Chief Executive’s report

Last year proved to be another 12 months of great
uncertainty on the financial markets, particularly with regard
to exchange rate movements, although fortunately stock
markets had recovered some ground by the end of the year
| am therefore pleased to report that overall our investments
did well, but we saw a significant and unexpected increase
in the value of claims paid out and we have increased our
reserves for outstanding claims in response to this

MPS finished 2009 with total assets of around £1 4 billon, a
nise of £200m in the year After prowiding for outstanding
reported claims and other liabiities, the amount availlable to
meet future clams from adverse clinical incidents, which had
already occurred by the end of 2009 but had not yet been
reported to MPS, increased from £797m to £913m This was
a reasonably good result considering the poor clams
experience but was disappointing compared to our
expectation at the start of the year

The waorst of the adverse claims expenence has been in the UK
and South Africa, although we are beginning to see a nse In
both the frequency and average size of clams in most
countres in which we operate around the wortd Of major
concern has been a quite starthng increase in the value of high
clams in the UK, where some settiements have leapt by 40%
or more as compared with similar claims settled in the raecent
past This 1s a worrying trend as it will inevitably mean higher
subscriptions for all our UK members, a similar worrying trend
1s also beginning to emerge in South Afnca The value of a
clam for catastrophic injury in the UK 1s now higher than
virtually anywhere else in the world including most of the States
n the USA There must be a question mark over whether
sociaty can afford such awards and we will continue to call for
a public debate on what 15 farr and appropriate compensation

An important development on the clams front 15 the
appearance of Lord Justice Jackson's Review of Civil Costs in

Our commitment to providing
doctors and dentists with the
skills necessary to meet the ever
increasing challenges to their
professional lives will continue,

as well as our commitment to safe
practice.

England and Wales 1t 1s a wide ranging and even-handed
report, which 1s far to both clamants and defendants
Amongst many recommendations, he 1s keen to put clamants
back in the position they used to be In before conditional fees
agreements were allowed, so that they once again have a
financial interest 1n the way their clam 1s managed The most
important reccmmendation 1s that After the Event insurance
cover and success feas should no longer be recoverable for
claims conducted under condrtional fee arrangements He also
tackles the problem of dispropertionate costs, often a feature
in small clam settlements and recommends that there should
be a new test of proportionality taking into account all the
factors of the Iitigation, not just the fact that the costs were
necessarly incurred

MPS contnbuted significant amounts of data to Lord Jackson’s
Rewview and we made several submissions both in writing and
in parson dunng the process We are pleased with the result,
as we beleve, If implemented, it will significantly recduce the
cost of htigation as a result of lower legal fees, which will be
beneficial to most parties, apant from, perhaps, clamant law
firms | know that one persen who will be particularly delighted
about the Review 18 my predecessor, Dr John Hickey, who
wrote the following 1in the MPS Annual Report three years ago

“Inflated clarmant costs are a sient scandal that should be
nvestigated and steps taken to prevent the few who are
benefiting at the expense of the many ”

It 15 not only the UK that has suffered from excessive clamant
costs but also other countnes iIn which we operate, with Ireland in
particular requnng a smilar overhaul of the cwl costs regme
There have recently been calls in Ireland for a major judicial review
of legal costs and MPS fully supports the need for this

Meeting with key stakeholders, including government officials,
politicians and regulators, 1s an mportant part of our role In
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protecting the nterests of members Our am 18 to try and
ensure that any decisions taken regarding new legislation or
regulatory changes affecting professional practice are done cn
an informed basis, which can be quite a challenge 2009 was
a parbicularly busy year on this front and we were faced with
critical 1ssues in reland, South Africa and New Zealand, which
required considerable effort to ensure favourabls outcomes
MPS will always be proactve in this area and our aim s to meet
with all interested parties on a regular basis to discuss topical
1issues The more helpful we can be, the greater the lkehhood
that we will be listened to when problems arnise

MPS 1s always locking at how we can enhance our service We
understand that our members lead busy Iives and we try to find
ways to make contacting us as easy and hassle free as
possible Amongst several nitiatives  during 2009 we opened
a new office in Edinburgh, which will provide improved access
for our members in Scotland, we commenced maor IT
projects to enable all our members to commurucate with us
more efficiently over the nternet, and we are planning to
extend our hours of operation in the UK office for membership
queries, which will facilitate access not just for UK members
but also members in several other countnes and time zones

Our efforts to increase the focus on our international
operatons have continued and we reman committed to
ensunng that our publications are relevant to members
wherever they are based With regard to this, we welcome
feedback from members on our cumrent range of publications
and new deas for articles on topical i1ssues QOur
communications depariment would welcome approaches from
anyone who 1s interested n contnbuting

Having successfully introduced in New Zealand n 2006 a
confidential counselling service for members, we started a
similar counselling service (n South Africa last year, which has
been very favourably recenved by our members there It has
become clear that there 1s a real need for this type of support
for members and we will be ntroducing further counseling
services for members in Hong Kong, Singapore and Malaysia
in 2010

Amongst the slands of the West Indies, we have members in
more than 15 countnes and setting far and consistent
subscription rates aver such a wide vanety of economies and
size of populations 1s a real challenge A full actuarnal review
was carned out last year with the am of achieving a farer
balance to the subscriptions, and this has resulted n some
major changes with several countnes and specialties paying
more but a majonty of members paying less

It 15 & fJundamental part of MPS's philosophy that subscriptions

should be far and we try as far as posstble to achieve this It
doss not mean that every member will be happy with therr level
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of subscnption and we are fully conscious that for sorne high-
nsk specialiies the subscnptions charged can be a substantial
part of a doctor's Income We always try to ensure that our
subscrptions do not impact on the praciice of medicine n a
country and where the cost of practising reaches unacceptable
levels we will lobby government to try to abtan financial
support or a change in the law to help the specialty concerned

Qur focus at MPS on producing high qualty education continued
n 2008 Last vear we provded more than 350 skills-based
workshops designed by the Cognitive Institute to whom | have
referred in previous reports  The Cognitve Institute, now part of
MPS, 15 one of the world's leading specialist training companies in
communication skilis for doctors and dentists

in addmon, we have provded more than 200 other workshops
and nsk assessments and more than 300 lectures
worladwide 2010 will see the number of events increase to more
than 1,000 and the introduction of an e-learning system, wiich
has been in development over the last year

Our commitment to providing doctors and dentists with the
skills necessary to meet the ever increasing challenges to ther
professicnat ives will continue, as well as our commitment to
safe practice

The outlook for 2010 remans difficult, with the medical and
dental professions continuing 1o face major challenges | have
already mentioned the worryng trend in the value and
frequency of claims, but the other 1Issue on which | will continue
to speak out 1S the fact that there has never been a time when
our members are under so much scrutny with potentially
career threaterung outcomes My concernis that if doctors and
dentists continue to believe that they are under sustained
attack and fear the stress of prolonged investigation for one or
two mistakes in a career, then many of those who are the most
canng and conscientious wilf decide to leave their profession
early or, even worse, decide not to tramn in the first place

| strongly believe that there needs to be a recognition and
acceptance by the public that mistakes will always occur and
that perfect outcomes shoud not be taken for granted
Mistakes should be openly investigated in a “no blame”
environment so that lessons can be learned without fear of
retnbution | also call on regulators to only investigate cases
where there 15 a real and justified nsk of significant imparment
N a practiioner’s fitness to practise Doctors and dentists are
ordinary citizens but the standards of behaviour that are
increasingly expected, not only in therr working environment
but also thewr private Iives, make it wirtually impossible for them
to live up to those standards every moment of the day

Tony Mason
Chuef Executive
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Finance Director’s report

It is well known that there can sometimes be a very long delay
between an adverse incident and the payment of compensation,
In extrene cases this can be over 20 years, as was illustrated by
case reports in the January 2010 edition of Casebook and which
are also referred to in the Charman's statement Consequently, it
15 n members’ interests that ther indemnty omganisation I1s
financially robust, so that they have the assurance that they will
receive the assistance they need no matter when that need may
anse

Financial stability

For this reason, MPS has for some years now pursued a financial
target, which has been derved n a similar manner to that of a
regulated insurance company and 1s designed to ensure the long-
term financial stability and wiability of the organisation Through the
use of this target MPS ensures that it has assets sufficient to cover
all of ts potential claim responsibxiies — those reported and those
yet to be reported — whilst also mantaning a margin of assets left
over 1o provide a “cushion” agamst the mpact of unexpected
adverse events

In the last two years, MPS has expenenced examples of just such
unexpected adverse events Last year, | reported that MPS's
financial positon had been challenged by the extreme falls in
global nvestment markets In 2009, MPS's financial postion was
agamn challenged, this tme by the unexpected growth in its clams
responsibiites (the detals of which are provided below)

| am pleased to report that despite these adverse events and
taking the last two years together, MPS has managed to increase
the value of funds available to meet future labiities and charges by
£166m over that penod

Financial overview

The value of funds available to meet future liabities and charges
increased dunng the year by £116 3m, such that the value at the
vear end was £913 1m This compares to an increase in 2008 of
£49 7m and a closing balance at the end of 2008 of £796 8m
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...lt is in members’ interests that
their indemnity organisation is
financially robust, so that they have
the assurance that they will receive
the assistance they need no matter
when that need may arise.

Under the clams-incurred indemnity that MPS provides, subject
10 the exercising of discretion, MPS will assume responstiility for
claims that are yet to be reported from incidents that took place
before 31 December 2009 - so-called “unreported clams” As
MPS has already collected a subscnption for the penod to which
these relate we consider 1t appropnate to have sufficient funds to
meet the expecied cost of these potential clams f and when
discretion I1s exercised to assist This 1s what the £913 1m of funds
is for and, as stated in Note 21 to these accounts, this sum 1s
more than sufficent for that purpose

Whilst the fund of £913 1m remians more than sufficient to meet
the estimated cost of these potential clams, the margn by
which this sum exceeds the estmated value of these potental
clams has declined in the year This 1s because the estimated
value of the potential claims has Increased in the year by more
than the increase in assets to0 meet these clams - which 1s
contrary to expectations The increase in assets was more than
expected, as a result of favourable investment performance and
this just ponts to the exceptional and unexpected development
in potential claims, which mirrers the development of reported
clams More detal on the development of reported clams 1s
provided below

Financial performance

Subscnption and other income

Members' subscnption and other Income increased by £23 3m,
92% (2008 £202m, B87% As in past years, this 1s a
combination of both mncreases n subscnption rates and an
increase i member numbers Although the increases in
subscnption and member numbers vanes between countres and
even between different groups of membership, In general MPS's
subscnption rates increased between 0% and 6% n 2009 and the
number of members who pay a subscnption increased by a Ittle
over 4%

MPS continues to set subsciption rates with the benefit of
advice from independent consultng actuaries, which 1t
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FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT CONTINUED

considers are necessary to meet the future costs that will anse
from adverse incidents in the year to which the subscnptions
relate In the long run it 1s not n MPS's, members’, or ther
patients’ interest 1o set rates that are insufficient to meet these
future costs

Claims costs and associated legal costs

These are the costs ncurred in defending and setting clams of
negligence in the vear, plus the change in the value of the
expected future cost of clams of negligence between the start of
the year and the end of the year Such costs were £190 9m In
2009 (2008 £160 5m) an increass of £30 4m or 18 9% in the year
(2008 £60 0m, 59 7%)

On the face of t, the figures above show a significant increase in
clams costs in 2008 and a more modest Increase In 2009
However, this does not show the true underiyving picture as the
figures are distorted, partly by the mpact of exchange rate
movements over the last two years on MPS's non-sterling clams
values and partly by the need to pay a refrospective tax charge in
2008, which 15 included N the £600m dentfied above (An
explanation of the impact of exchange rate movements s
provided below)

if these distortions are stnpped out of the figures, then the increase
in clams costs for 2008 was about £17m and for 2008 was about
£80m An ncrease in clams costs from year to year 1s to be
expected as MPS has been successful n growing its membership
base year on year and inflation will also contnbute to an increase
n costs However, the 2008 mcrease of £80m 1s gquite exceptional
There are a number of different reasons for the increase, but the
pnmary one has been the growth in the expected future value of
UK medical clams

When a clam s first reported, it 1s usually accompanied by a brief
descrption of the facts and an expenenced clams handter will
estimate the likely cost of setting the clarm, based on the facts
avalable As time goes on, more informaticn about the potential
loss will become clear and the claims handler will continually
update ther expectation of the cost of sefting the clam The
informaton that leads to a change (not always an increase) in the
expected settlement value may be specrfic to the case, or may be
related to an issue general to all smilar cases In 2009, analysis
suggests that both specrfic and general issues were responsible
for the large nse in claims costs

Dunng 2009, MPS increased the expected future costs of
settlement of all of its larger UK clams (which are almost
exclusively medical) to reflect trends seen Iin cases being settled
in the year One of the dnvers for this has been the need to
Increase the expected settlement to reflect the mcreasing cost
of future care for those indwiduals who, as a result of medical
negligence, need help It 15 now not unusual to see clams
where the current annual cost of future care 1s pleaded at about

£200,000 for those individuals with greatest need, although 1o
date MPS has been successful in setting at levels below this
This, It canunction with normal or near normal life expectancy
for such ndwiduats, means that lump sum settlemenis in
excess of £5m are no longer rare

Insurance recoveries

When settng subscriptons, MPS does so based on an
expectation of the future number and cost of clams If actual clams
experience 15 worse than expected, then MPS will have faled to
collect sufficent ncome to cover the cost One reason for this may
be due to an unexpected level of catastrophic clams To help
mihigate this, MPS passes the nsk that clams may be setiled above
a certan level to a thid party, through insurance MPS has
mihgated the cost of unexpected catastrophic clams expenence
in thus way for many years

The increase In anticipated recovenes of £19 7m 1s more than
18 times the anticipated increase in recovenes for 2008 (£1 Om)
and nearly 12 tmes the anticipated ncrease in recovenes for
2007 {£1 7Tm) and s again a reflection of the deterioration in
clams seen in 2009

Adwvisory and associated legal costs

These are the costs associated with assisting members with all
matters other than clams of negligence and the change In the
year of the outstanding value of all such clams reported where
discretion has been exerased The costs for 2009 were £46 8m
{2008 £429m) an increase of £39m, 9 1% (2008 increase of
£11 4m, 36 1%}

As with clams costs above, the reported figures are distorted by
exchange rate movements and the impact of retrospective tax in
2008 If these are sinpped out, then the 2003 increase was £7m,
18% (2008 increase of £6m, 19%}

Some of the Increase 1s due to the ever-growing demand for
these services, the growing complexity of cases put before
regulators and the growth In member numbers However, some
of the Increase (£1 8m) was due to a change in the way that the
outstanding reserve {or reported matiers 1s calculated, to bnng
it into ine with the reserving for other clams The reserve for
outstanding reported matters represents MPS's best estimate
of the external legal costs which will have to be incurred to
manage these matters to conclusion But there will alse be an
internal cost for MPS staff to work on these ¢lams up to the
pant of conclusion, and so 1t 18 prudent that this future cost
should also be provided for This additional prowvision has been
ncluded this year for the first tme

Education, pubhications and external relations

These are the costs of developing and delivening education and
nsk management serices to members as well as providng a
variety of publications, with the am of reducing nsk, and llaising
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with regulators, legislators and professional representative bodies
around the world on behalf ¢f members and the wder
professions, on matters relevant to MPS and its members

MPS 18 now nto s third year of developng and delivenng
educational and nsk management services for members We
contnue to believe strongly that nt 15 approprate for MPS to
provide these services and indeed to use subscnption income to
fund a certan level of these services

Conseguently, the costs deveted to this area continue to grow, up
by £2 3m, 74% n 2009, (2008 £10m, 49%) This increase n
costs 15 partly an investment n staff and traning to support and
delver educational and nsk management senices, and partly the
actual costs of delivenng services In 2009, MPS delivered 550
educational events 1o members around the world and t 1s ptanned
to increase this to more than 1,000 n 2010

Admimstration expenses

These are the costs of running the business, other than those
costs related to the management of clams or the provision of
education and external relations, which are dealt with elsewhere
Thus this leaves common services such as finance, IT, human
resources and office accommodation, as well as marketing and
membership services

The costs have ncreased n 2009 by £0 2m, 1 2% (2008 £4 0m,
35 2%) The large Increase In 2008 was partly related 1o costs for
the first year of increased office accomrodation i Lesds and
London Similarty, but to a lesser extent, some of the 2009
ncrease 1$ due to the opening of a new office m Edinburgh in earty
2009 As can be seen from Note 7 to the accounts, MPS
increased staff numbers by 49 in the year However, the relatively
modest ncrease in administration expenses indicates that most of
this resource was directed to claims handling, which 1s included in
the clams cost line, medico and dentolegal services, which I1s
Included n the adwvisory costs ine and educational, publications
and external relations, as discussed above

Loss on exchange movements

MPS expenences a profit or loss on exchange movements in two
ways ones through trading and the other 1s through the matching
of assets and liabiities

4 Trading

As part of its business, MPS will receve Income and pay costs in
non-stering cumrencies Whenever it does this there may be a pencd
of ime between entenng the iIncome or costs due n the books of
account and then entenng the actual recept or payment ff the
exchange rate moves dunng this tme, whilst there wil be no
difference i local currency between the inttial entry and subsequent
entry, there may be a difference n stering terms and this will resutt
n a proiit or loss on exchange This impact 15 relatvely minor
compared to the impact from matching assets and labilhies
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B Matching

MPS has clams llabilities in many diferent countnes it 1s important
to ensure that the assets held to meet the future costs of these
clams are held n the same curency, so that exchange rate
movements do not alter MPS’s abiity to fund these clam labilhes
Although the exchange element of the assets and labilities are
closely matched, accounting disclosure requirements dictate that
In these published accounts, the exchange movements related to
the claim kabiites are included within the clams cost Ine and the
exchange movements related to assets are ncluded m the Ine
“loss/{profit) on exchange movements”, which seems tc suggest
that MPS 15 exposed to large kvels of profit or loss due to
exchange rate moverments This s not actually so

Investments

MPS holds investments to meet the future cost of claims for
which it already has a lhability, reported clams, and those
potential claims for which it wil have a habilty, subject to the
exercising of discretion, “unreported clams” The prnimary
purpose of these investments 15 to match the clam and
potential clam hablibes, firstly by currency and then by matunty
Conseqguently, much of MPS's portfolio 1s held in government
bonds, particularly UK index-Inked bonds A much smaller
proportion 1s held in return seeking assets such as equities and
within this section of the portfolio there 1s considerable diversity
to reduce the risk associated with such assets

MPS's investments increased n the year by £164 6m, 14 5%
{2008 €117 Om, 115%]), t0 end the year at £1,297m This
increase I1s a comtunation of the addition of the excess of annual
subscription income over costs ncurred In the year, which In
2009 added £55m (2008 £93m) and the investment return on
existing funds, which itself 1s a combination of investment
income before tax of £23m (2008 £27m) and a capital increase
net of management fees of £87m (2008 a decrease of £3m)
This represents an investment return after tax and management
fees of a Intle over 6% (2008 1%)

Dunng the year equity performance was very good, with UK equities
returning nearly 30% and intemational equities perfonming neary as
well, aithough exchange rate movermenits meant that the return of
these n sterling terms was shghtly lower than achieved in local
currency terms However, In sbsolute terms these performances
served only to retumn markets to about the levels seen at the start of
2008 By contrast, bond markets dd not fare as well, with a positive
performance for UK index-hnked stocks but a negative performance
in stering temns for European and US bonds

Conclusion

In 2008, MPS expenenced sgnificant volatity n investment
markets and then in 2009 expenenced large increases n s claim
liabiities Despite these two unexpected adverse events, MPS's
financial position 15 not signeficantly drfferent at the end of 2009
than it was at the start of 2008



THE MEDICAL PROTECTION SOCIETY LIMITED
FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT CONTINUED

A strong financial position 15 vital for members’ peace of mnd
because 1t 13 quite common for members to seek assistance In
relabhon 1o matters ansing from an adverse ncident which
occurred many years previously Members need to be assured
that, if this happens to them, their defence organisation will still be
there to prowde them with that much-needed assistance

Such financial stability comes from the prudent settng of
subscrptions to meet the estimated cost of future potential claams
as well as careful financial management and the mitgation of
related nsks The last two years shows that MPS has been very
successful In each of these areas

Simon Kayll
Finance Director
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Members of the Council and Committees

Frank Attwood

Frank Attwood was elected to the Council as a non-executive
director of MPS in June 2004 He 1s a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and was formerly
a partner in RSM Robson Rhodes LLP He was, until retinng on
31 December 2008, Deputy Char of the Internahonal Ethics
Standards Board of the International Federation of
Accountants His professional expenence covers audits of
insurance entiies, charities and other regulated companies

Keith Bradley

Keith Bradley joined the Council as a non-executive director of
MPS in July 2007 and was elected by the membership at the
Annual General Meeting in June 2008 He 1s a member of the
House of Lords, 1S a non-executive drrector of the Chnstie
Hospital NHS Foundatton Trust, Char of Manchester Salford
and Trafford LIFT Company and 1s Associate Vice-President of
the University of Manchester He was formerly member of
Parliament for Manchester Withington from 1987-2005, served
as a Government Minister and a member of the Health Select
Committee He 1s a member of the Privy Councll

lan Croxford

lan Croxford joned the Councii as a non-executive director of
MPS In November 2007 and was elected by the membership at
the Annual General Meeting In June 2008 He 1s z barnster, being
called to the Bar in 1976 (Gray's Inn), was apponted a QC in
1993, became a Bencher at Gray's Inn m 2001 and was
appointed as a Deputy High Court Judge (Chancery Dvision) in
2007 lan's professional practice 1s manly substantial commercial
and professtonal negligence {non-medical) ibgation He has, since
1990, served as a Governor of Westclif High School for Boys and
became Chainrman of Governors in 1995

Nicholas Davies

Nick Davies was elected to the Council as a non-executve
director of MPS in May 2001 and was appointed Charrman of
Council in 2003 He has been a member of the Claims Adwisory
Committee since 1996 He 1s a consultant anassthebist at the
Southampton University Hospitals NHS Trust and was the Clinical
Services Director for Anaesthesia, Theatres and Intenswve Care
from 1894-1897, and 2001-2003 He was also an examiner for
FRCA, Royal College of Anaesthetists from 1991-2003

MPS indemnity is subject to the
discretion of MPS Council. This
often allows us to support a
member under circumstances
that lie outside the scope of an
Insurance policy’s small print.

Mark Dawvis

Mark Davis was elected to the Council as a non-executive
director of MPS In June 2009 He 1s in General Practice in
Leeds where he has been a principal smce 1984 He acts as an
Occupational Medical Adviser to a number of occupational
health companies and since 2000 has acted as an independent
expert witness Since 2007 he has been a board member of a
Practice Based GCommissioning consortium and from
2002-2006 was a member of the Professional Executive
Committes of the East Leeds Prmary Care Trust He has a
special nterest In cardicvascular medicine and has served, or
does serve, on a number of Department of Health, Prmary Care
and NIHCE committees and working groups related to
cardiovascular medicine

Yasmin Drabu

Yasmin Drabu was elected to the Council as a non-executive
director of MPS In June 2008 Since February 2010 she has
worked at the Department of Helath as Senior Medical Officer
in the Blocd Policy — Infectious Diseases Division Previous
appointments include from 2006-2010, the Medical Director
and Director of Infection Prevention and Control at the Barking,
Havenng and Redbndge NHS Trust, from 2000-2006, Medical
Drrector at North Middlesex University Hosprtal NHS Trust and
from 1982-2006, consultant microbiologist, from 1986—-1993
head of department, pathology, from 1893-1995 clinical
director, diagnostic services, and from 1995-1997 dwisional
drrector

Mary Favier

Mary Favier was elected to the Council as a non-executive
director of MPS In June 2005 She works as a GP principal and
partner in a practice in Cork She s Char of Education for the
Insh College of General Practtioners and a member of its
executive She 1s on the editorial board of Forum, the ICGP
general practice magazine, and a member of the editonal board
of a health mformation consumer website

Kathryn Harley

Kathy Harley was appointed to the Counci in July 2006 as an
ex officio non-executive director of MPS following her
appointment as Chaw of Dental Protection Ltd She has been
a member of the Dental Protection Board and Adwisory
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Comrmuittee for Dental Clams since 2000 Kathy 15 a
Consultant and Honorary Clinical Serior Lecturer in Paediatric
Dentistry at the Edinburgh Dental Institute where she 1s
Chincal Lead for Paediatnc Dentistry She 1s a board member
and currently Charr of the Postgraduate Education Committee
of the Faculty of Dental Surgery, The Royal College of
Surgeons of England

Taj Hassan

Ta) Hassan was elected to the Council as a non-executive
director of MPS in June 2006 He has been a member of the
MPS Claims Adwisory Committee since 2004 and 1s a
consultant in Emergency Medicine at Leeds General Infirmary,
Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust He 1s presently a council
member of the College of Emergency Medicine (CEM) as
Regional Chair for Yorkshire & Humber He 1s also the national
Director for elLearning for the College, an examiner for
Fellowship of the CEM, and a member of the College’s Safety
Committee

Leela Kapila

Leela Kapila was elected to the Councl as a non-executve
director in June 2003 Untl 2002 she was a consultant paediatne
surgeon at the Unversity and City Hospitals, Nottingham She
was wisiting professor at a number of international hosprtals and a
counctl member of the Royal College of Surgeons from 1992-
=2004 She was Charman of the Children's Surgicat Forum at the
Royal College of Surgeons and Senior Vice-President of the Royal
Coliege of Surgeons from 2003-2004 Since 2004 she has been
a Trustee of Ranbows Hospice for Children and Young People,
Loughborough

Simom Kayll

Simon Kayll was elected to the Council as an executive director
n June 2003 He i1s a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales He joined MPS in February
1994 as Chief Accountant and was successively appointed as
Financial Controller and finally Finance Director in January 1999
He was also appointed Company Secretary for MPS and most
of its subsidiary companies in March 2000 His current
responsibibties mclude finance, Investment management,
remnsurance, Internal audit, marketing, membership and
oversight of MPS Risk Solutions Limited

Kevin Lews

Kevin Lewis was elected to the Council as an executive director
in June 2003 He 1s formerly a genera! dental practioner and
was a member of the onginal Board of Dental Protection
Limited from 1989-1992, before beng appointed as a
dentolegal adwiser with Dental Protection in 1992 He was
subsequently appointed Dental Director of MPS in 1998 His
responsibiites include the delivery of all aspects of dentolegal
services to members as well as marketing Dental Protection He
was an Assoclate Editor of Dental Practice (1981-2006), and
since 2006 has been the Consultant Editor of Dentistry He was
a member of GDC steenng group on Recertification and former
Vice President of the British Association for Dental Therapists
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and Council member of the British Society for Restorative
Dentistry

Tony Mason

Tony Mason joined the Councl as Chief Exacutive of MPS in
October 2007 He 1s a Fellow of the Institute of Actuanes
Before joining MPS, he was a partner at Lane Clark & Peacock
LLP a firm of consultng actuares He was appointed a partner
m 1985, was appomnted Managing Partner in 1897 and
Charman i 2008 He specialsed in all matters concerning
professional indemnity cover ansing from clinical negligence,
including the NHS In England and Scotland, MPS and several
Australlan orgamsatons Pnor to his appointment as Chief
Executive, he was an actuanal adwviser to MPS for more than 20
years

Elizabeth Vallance

Elizabeth Vallance joined the Council as a non-executive director
of MPS in February 2005 and was elected by the membership at
the Annual General Meeting in June 2005 She sits on the board
of Charter European Trust plc and has been an independent
director of HMV Group, Norwich Union ple and Aviva plc She s
a Fellow of Queen Mary and of the Institute of Education, both at
the University of London She s Chairman of | CAN, the children’s
communication chanty and was Charman of St George’s
Healthcare NHS Trust and of the Advisory Committee on Clinicat
Excellence Awards She 1s a magistrate on the inner London
bench, was High Shertft of Greater London (2008-2009), and s
on the Committee on Standards in Public Life

Richard Youell

Richard Youell was elected to the Council as a non-executive
director of MPS in June 2003 He 1s a commercial arbitrator
specidlising In insurance disputes and spent most of his
working Ife as a Uoyd's underwriter, from which he 1s now
retired He i1s alsc a non-executive director of Britannia Steam
Ship Insurance Association Limited, Tindall Riley (Bntannia)
Limited and Liberty Syndicate Managerment Ltd

MPS also has a President, Sir Peter Morris  This position is not
& director of the board under ihe terms of the Compames Act,
but the President is elected by the membership and is entitied
to, and does, attend Counci meetings, participating fully in the
discussions

Peter Morris

Peter Moms was elected President in June 2007 He 1s Nuffield
Professor of Surgery Ementus and former Chairman of the
Department of Surgery and Dwector of the Transplant Centre,
University of Oxford He was, from 2001-2004, President of the
Rovyal College of Surgeons of England He s also Director of the
Centre for Evidence in Transplantation at the Royal College of
Surgeons and the Umversty of London and Honorary
Professor, Fellow of the Royal Society and the Academy of
Medical Sciences, and Foreign Member of both the Institute of
Medicne of the National Academy of Sciences and the
Amencan Philosophical Society
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Senior Medicolegal Advisers
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GLP MFALM Raw Rattan Lposres PaDp DM
Datuk Dr Yee Moh Chal MP MLA LLB(+ons) MB BCh FFFLM Lynn Rees BDS DGDPUK)
Alan Seaton s
New Zealand Phil Shaw e0s LDS DGOP MGDS CPOS
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Report of the Council

The Counctl, which for the purposes of the Companies Act
2006 1s the Board of Directors, presents its annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2009

Principal activity and business review

Principal activity

MPS 15 a mutual society, the function of which 1s to protect,
support and safeguard the character and interests of medical
and dental practtioners and other healthcare professionals It s
a non-profit-making company lmited by guarantee and all
income and property must be applied solely towards its objects
as defined by MPS’s Memorandum of Association

One of MPS's objects 15 te grant indemnity to members in
respect of clams and demands anging from their professional
practice, which may result in the payment of costs and
damages The Articles of Association set down m paragraph 40
state that ‘the grant of an indemnity shall be entirely in the
discretion of the Councit who shall have the power to iImpose
such terms and conditions on the grant of any indemnity as it
thinks fit and may in 1its absolute discretion hmit or restrict such
Indemnity or decline altogether to grant the same’

In addition to the principal activity of the holding company, the
group has two principal frading subsidianes, MPS Risk
Solutions Limited, and Cognitive Consulting Group Pty
Limted MPS Risk Sclutions Limited 1s registered in England
and s a general Insurance company, regulated by the
Financial Services Authority, which provides professional
indemmnity, malpractice, product and public habiity cover to
corporate healthcare providers Cogrvtive Consulting Group
Pty Limited s registered n Austraha and provides education
and traning in communication skills and risk management to
medical practitioners There is a further major subsichary, MPI
{London) Limited (MP), which 1s registered in England and
holds the invested assets con behalf of MPS MPI has a
separate board which 15 responsible for implementing the
investment strategy approved by MPS Council Funds are
invested with third party fund managers and MP! does not
underiake any direct investment activity The MPI board 1s also
responsible for pverseeing the investment performance of the
third party managers

Business purpose

MPS exists to serve ts members MPS ams to ensure that it
remains a strong viable entdy to meet its current and future
commitments to members and that it continues to prowvide
much-needed services to members for years to come

In provmiding services to members, subject to discretion and the
scope of the benefits of membership, MPS will meet the costs
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of assisting members provided that the request stems from an
incident that occurred at a time when the member was paying
an appropnate subscription

This means that If & member seeks advice or an indemnity
relating to an ncadent from a particular year, providing the
member was paying an appropnate subscnption dunng the
year of the incident and assistance 1s granted, then MPS will
pay all reascnable costs related to that incident These costs
may include representation at a regulatory counci, assistance
with disciphinary proceedings and full ndemnity for damages
and costs In cases of neghgence Payment will be made even
though t may be years after the incident before costs are
incurred and the issues are resolved Applying for the benefits
of membership years after the adverse incident, subject only to
having paid the appropnate subscription for the period of the
adverse incident, 1s known as ¢lams-incurred cover

In addition, MPS has developed and continues to develop a
range of non-clinical educational courses and nsk management
assessments for members worldwide to help reduce nsk and
so improve patient care The educational courses will take the
form of warkshops, lectures and web-based learning and wll
focus on communication and interpersonal skills, practice
systems and processes, professionalism and ethics

Prncipat nsks and nsk management

Al businesses face nsks of one kind or another and prudent
management of the busness requires Identification,
quantification, management and mitigation of these rnisks, MPS
18 no exception The dentification and mitigation of the key risks
are detaled below and the process of the management of nsk
13 detalled in the section on Internal Controls below

The principal nsks facing MPS and thesr mitigation are

® Reserving nsk

MPS provides an indemnity to members for the costs and
damages associated wrth clams of negligence and the
costs associated with other claims  For MPS to provide this
support on a claims-incurred basis means that at any time
there are, as a result of past adverse incidents, clams that
have already been reported and potential claims that have
not yet been reported (unreported clams) Subject to
discretion, MPS will be responsible for all of these clams

For MPS to be responsible for paying these clams, it needs
to be able to assess the value of these claims and ensure
that it has sufficient assets to meet the expected total costs

The value of these claims 1s estimated by MPS and there I1s
a nsk that the eventual payments exceed the sums




THE MEDICAL PRCTECTION SOCIETY LIMITED
REPORT OF THE COUNCIL CONTINUED

estimated as the cost of the clams The uncertanty around
estimating the value of all clams 1s greater for unreported
claims, than for those that have been reported For
unreported clams, the uncertanties mnclude the number and
seventy of claims ansing, how long it 1s likely 1o take from the
date of the adverse incident to the making of a clam and
how many may be large claims The uncertainties for the
reported clams are a httle narrower, but still considerable

In addtion 1o the vanation inherent In the clams, there are
also external factors, mamnly changes in legislation which can
have a prefound impact on clam estimates MPS has seen
a number of changes In legislation n the UK over the last ten
years, nearly all of which resulted In an increase In the cost
of clams This includes the introduction of periodicals and
the reduction In discount rates The discount rate 1s the rate
used to “translate” future cash flows, to be pad under the
settlement agreament, into a lump sum value in current money
terms The lower the discount rate, the higher the value of the
lump sum The discount rate In England and Wales 1s set by the
Lord Chancellor and 1s currently 2 5% In other countnes, the
rate at which future cash flows are discounted to a current
value lump sum will be part of the settlement negotiations

The lkethood of vanation n the total outcome from the
expected estimate diminishes with the increasing size of the
portfolho  In addihion, the geographical dwversity of the
portfolio alsc helps to reduce the owveral vanation of
expected returns A larger more diversified portfolio 1s less
kely to be affected across the board by a change i any
subset of the portfolio

Mitigation

Mamntaining a large geographically diverse portfolic of sk 15
a key step in helping to reduce the vanation of outcome
around the expected mean Further steps are around
ensunng the qualty of the expected outcome In the first
place and this relies heavily on the accuracy of data used
and the qualty of analysis in determining the expected
outcome MPS uses the skill of its Internal staff to determmne
accurate estimates for indmdual claims It also ensures that
levels of skill are mantaned by supporting on-going traning
nmatives it also has many checks and balances in its internal
systems to review and monitor these estimates to achieve a
high degree of consistency MPS uses the expenence of ts
consulting actuary, Lane Clark & Peacock LLP, to use the
internal ndivdual claim estimates and membership data to
arnve at a statistical reserve for the kkely cost of all clams

Underwniting risk

MPS charges a subscnphion based on the expected clams of
those members paying the subscnption There 1s a nsk that the
resulting claims from those members wall turn out to exceed the
expectatons contamed within the subscnptions and thus MPS
will not have collected sufficient subscnption income
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Mitigation

Again, the skill of staff and adwsers 1s iImportant as are the
quality of nternal systems In addition, MPS carefully reviews
all applications and makes an assessment on those nsks
that it s wiling to accept MPS also runs an internal
programme to identify individual members who appear to
represent a higher than normal nisk and tnes to work with
them to reduce thetr nsk MPS also purchases insurance to
cover catastrophic high claims

Market risk

Subscriptions collected in any one year are invested until
they are needed to pay the costs ansing from the year in
which the subscrptions were receved The greater the
return MPS can achieve from investments, the less it would
theoreticaly need to charge in subscrnptions However, the
greater the nvestment return that MPS 1s trying to achieve
from 1ts nvested assets, the greater will be the fluctuations in
the value of those assets and thus, the greater wilt be the nsk
that MPS will see a fall in the value of its assets Such
volatility in the value of MPS’s assets 1s, when asset values
fall, damaging to the strength of the balance sheet and
significant volatility in investment returns makes it more
difficult to plan for the longer term

Mitigation

MPS has adopted a prudent mnvestment strategy that
carefully dentifies the levels of nsk and return acceptable In
its portiolo of assets External professional adwvice 1s
regularly sought and nvestment performance s subject to
detalled revew In conunction with advisers Wherever
practical, nsks ansing from currency fluctuation and
investment kquidity are minimised

The risk of asset value volatility 1s addressed in a number of
ways Firstly the majority of assets are held in bonds and
short-term money market funds, which have a relatively low
level of volatiity, secondly there 1s considerable diversity of
those assets held pnmarily to achueve an investrnent return
The equity element of these assets 1s held in four different
portfolios, each nvesting in different geographic areas and
equities are augmented by other return seeking assets
which reduce volatiity, because returns from these assets
are less than perfectly correlated wath the returns from
aquities

Currency risk

MPS holds assets to meet clams labitties The clams
liabilihies are n a number of different currencies If the assets
are not held in the same currency as the kabilites, then there
15 a nisk that movements in exchange rates will after the
relative value of assets to habilites Sometimes this might be
beneficial, sometimes not This 1s a risk that 1s outside the
scope of MPS's business and skill, and should be removed
as much as 18 possible
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Mitigation

MPS ensures that all magor non-stering claim liabilities are fulty
matched with assets to the same value in the same currency
Thes 1s fully complied with for euro and Rand dlarn labilites For
currencies where the kabilities are smaller, t ts not practical to
operate a local currency designated investment portfolio, so
MPS uses US dollar denominated assets to act as a proxy
match for such liabilies Many of these currencies are dlosely
linked to the US dollar anyway

biquidity nsk

Ligudity nsk 1S the nsk that there will be insufficient hquid assets
avallable 1o meet payments when they fall due This could
ether result In an nability to make the payment or the need to
terminate an iligud investment at an nopportune time, which
could be costly

Mitigation

In managing iquidity nsk, MPS needs to balance the ability to
gain an Investment return on its assets and the ability to have
sufficient funds to pay labiliies as they fal due MPS operates
a sophusticated systern through major ¢leanng banks to ensure
that funds are avalable on a daly basis when required, but
otherwrse are invested in pooled money market funds [n
addtion to this, the invested assets nclude a short-term
money market portfolio with an average weighted maturty of a
maxamurn of 12 months, which provides addrtional iquicity
needed

Crecht nsk

Credit nsk 1s the nsk that someone who owes money to MPS
wil fal to pay MPS has Iitle nsk from a fadure to pay
subscrptions by members, because if payments are not made,
members have no nght to apply for assistance MPS's man
credt nsk anses from erther a falure of its insurers or from a
falure of some of the counterparties involved n denvative
financial Instruments as part of MPS's investment portfoho

Specific commant on this nsk in relation to denvative financial
nstruments 1s provided on pages 22-23

Mitigation

MPS has a stated policy on the acceptable nsk profie for its
insurers  This policy states the need to spread the nsk across
a number of insurers and dictates the acceptable financial
secunty rating for nsurers MPS does not review the credrt nsk
of counterparties in dervative financial instruments, but nstead
agrees parameters with its investment managers as to what
secunty rating 15 acceptable for such counterpartes

Interest rate/inflaton nsk

MPS holds about 70% of its invested assets in bonds and
bond pnces move inversely to changes n nterest rates, thus
an ncrease N Interest rates will cause a fall in the price of
bonds The impact on MPS's liabiities 1s more complicated

www medicalprotection org
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The main nfluence on the costof large clams (in the UK) 1s that
element 1o reflect compensation for futwre costs or losses,
these are mamly loss of eamings and cost of future care An
estimate of the lump sum required to prowide for these future
costs 15 determined by reference to a discount factor The
discount factors might be expected to change with changing
nterest rate expectations, but in the UK it i 1n fact fixed, by the
Lord Chancellor However, with the introduction in 2005 of
penodical payments as an alternatve to lump sum or
structured settlements, compensation can be provided as a
reguiar monthly payment for the Iife of the clamant, and these
payments are to be Indexed according to the retall pnce index
Since the determination of the Appeal in the Thompstone
case, rt 13 increasingly likely that for setflements subject to
penodicals, the cost of future care will be subject to Indexation
by a wage measure and not the retall pnce index

Specific comment on thus nskn relation to dervative financral
instruments 1s provided on pages 22-23

Mrgation

Interest rate exposure for bond assets 1s miigated firstly by
having a broad range of bond holdings, with different
sensiviies to interest rate movements and secondly by
holding a predominance of index-linked bonds, so that Interest
rate nses due to ncreasing inflation are allowed for In the
rebasing of the capital vaue and coupon amount and
addtional mitigation 15 provided by the abiity to reduce the tax
charge as a result of indexaton MPS's response to the nsk
inherent i penodicals s fisty to ensure that s has an
appropnate nvestment make-up to closely match the habilities
and secondly to ensure that it has sufficient assets to allow a
margin In case of unexpected changes in interest and inflation
rates

A Operational nsk
Any orgarusation will e exposed to operational nsk, that i1s to
say the nsk that a falure n ds operations may incur an
addtional cost Examples for MPS might mnclude costs
associaled with a major falure of IT systems, fraud, fire in one
of the offices or theft of its assets

Mitigation

MPS has done much to ensure that # has IT back-up systems
and contingency plans in the event of failures or disasters, such
that there will be mintmal disruption to its business i also
spends time reviewing and testing s internal business
systems, to ensure that they are sufficiently robust to ensure
accuracy of data on wiich business decisions are based, and
to prevent fraud and theft

Financial targets

Despite the nsk mitigation wdentified above, it 1 impossible to
elminate nsk Consequently, MPS needs to ensure that it has
the financial resources to cope with the remaining unmibgated
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nsk so that ¢ can provide members with the assurance they
need that MPS will be In a position to respond to therr requests
for assistance no matter when these are made

To this end, MPS has set financial targsts that will ensure that ts
assets exceed the estimated value of both its reported clarms and
unreported potential claims, to protect against the nisk that clams
may, for many reasons, when eventually settled, cost more than
anticipated, this 15 known as reserving nsk The financial targets
have been set such that even ff these values were, within certain
parameters, to be higher than expected, or, agan within certain
parameters, the value of Invested assets was to be lower than
expected, which s known as market nsk, then MPS would stilt
have sufficient funds to meet all of ts potental clams

More detaill 1s provided on the financial targets in the Finance
Director’s report on pages 5-8

Financial performance for the year
Subscnption income has increased in the year. administrative
costs were close to expectation and investrment performance
has been posittve However the development of reporied
claims, particularly for UK and South Africa has been
considerably worse than anticpated

More detad of the financial performance for the year is provided
within the Finance Director’s report on pages 5-8

Key markets .

MPS operates in a number of different international markets
This international perspective allows many members to practise
around the world and stll enjoy the benefits of MPS
membership It also allows MPS to use its wide and diverse
expernence for the benefit of all its members

MPS's pnincipal markets are
B Hong Kong

o lreland

B Malaysia

@ New Zealand

Singapore

South Afnica

E United Kingdom

B West Indies and Bermuda

In addition, MPS may provide the benefits of membership In
many other countnes and f members intend to work abroad,
thay should contact therr membership administrator to see If
continued membership of MPS 1s possible

MPS has a very strong position in ali of the above key markets
Member numbers

The business am s to grow membership in a controllied manner
without increasing the overall nsk exposure of the orgarusaton

18

The 2009 ncrease In total members, including those who don't
pay a subswmption was G 8% (2008 3 5%)

With reference to those members who have pad a
subscnption to MPS in 2009 and so coninbuted to the 9 2%
increase In subscription and other income for 2009, numbers
ncreased n the year by 4 2% compared to 6 1% in the
previous year

In addition to the growth in member numbers, internal
measurements also show that the nsk profile of the
membership for 2009 compared to 2008 improved in all but
one area, and the one area that did not iImprove detenorated by
only 0 1%

Staff and the provision of services

Staff are a vital ingredient in providing the service to members
MPS dces much to ensure effective recrutment of staff,
appropriate tratming once recruited and the provision of
approprate management, reward and working condtions to
help ensure retention of a skilled resource

MPS continues to invest considerable time to help senior staff
with managng performance, to ensure consistency of
management across the orgamsation and to ensure that
managers feel supported in taking the decisions necessary for
the business I addiion, much has been done to improve
internal communicaton, so that staff are more aware of their
contribution to the success of MPS and more aware of 1ssues
within the business

MPS was reaccrechted with the Investors In Pecple Standard in
early 2010

Future developments

The Chief Executive’s report (see pages 2-3) refers to
developments during the year and touches on future
developments

For the coming year, MPS's main focus will continue to be the
delivery of a high-quality, cost-effective service to members,
the dehbvery of education and nsk management courses to
members and the continued strengthening of our relationship
with regulators, legislators and professtonal representative
bodies To this end, MPS will continue to ensure that it has the
internal rescurces necessary to meet demand from members
and will continue to develop 1ts IT and operational systems to
improve ther effictency and cost effectiveness

Donaticns

Chantable donations made by MPS dunng the year amounted
to £10,000 (2008 £11,000) Donations in 2008 were all in
favour of the Chanties Aid Foundation in lieu of fees wawved by
a Director of MPI {London) limited No poltical donations were
made dunng the year (2008 £nil)
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Employees

During the year MPS continued to provide employees with
relevant information and seek ther views on matters of
caommon concern through the Staff Consultative Group, staff
brefings and through lne managers Pnonty 18 gven to
ensunng that employees are aware of all significant matters
affecting MPS’s trading position and of any significant
organisational changes MPS also seeks regular feedback from
its employees and a number of different mechanisms exist for
this, including a regular company-wide staff survey

In 2005, MPS decided to adapt the existing Staff Consultative
Group tn order to compty with the requiremnents of the Information
and Consuftation of Employees Regulations 2005

MPS has also sponsored the establishment of a group of staff to
Investigate ways that MPS can be more energy efficient and
recluce waste This group has sought advice from external
consultants and issued its ntial report ) 2008 The report was
subsequenily discussed by the Senior Management Group and
relevant actions were adopted fo try and reduce consumption of
energy and matenals

It 15 the policy of MPS to support the employment of disabled
persons where possible, bath In recrutment and by retention of
employees who become disabled whilst in the employment of MPS,
as well as generally through trainng and career development

Members of the Council
The names of the members of the Council of MPS who served
dunng the year are set out on page 9

Corporate Governance

The Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authornty require
Isted companies to disclose how they have applied the
prnciples set out 1n Section 1 of the Combined Code prepared
by the Committee on Corporate Governance and whether they
have compled with its provisions throughout the penod
Although not listed, MPS complies with the Combined Code
where it 1s considered relevant to its business and constitution
The following 1s, where relevant, a statement in accordance
with the Code

Council

The Council, which i1s the Board of Directors of MPS, consists
of a non-executive Chawrman, a Chisf Executive, two further
executive members and eleven other non-executive members
MPS’s constitution requires that the maonty of Counci
members are doctors or dentists and that the Chawman 1s a
doctor or dentist

Of the non-executves including the Chairmany at the year end,
seven are doctors or dentists and five are not The non-executives
are considered to be independent The five non-executives who
are not a doctor or dentist have no financial interest n MPS other
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than ther fees as members of the Council The seven non-
executves who are a doctor or denist have varying financial
interests I MPS, but these are not felt sufiicient to compromise
their Independence They receve fees as members of the Counci
and some had personal membership with MPS One recenved
fees for prowding advice to MPS on the management of three
clams Payment to members of the Council refated to clams
invohing MPS members has the potential for a confict of interest
and MPS has a policy that Councl members cannot act as expert
witnesses, 1f ther reports are to be used n court One non-
executve member of Council who left Councit n June 2009 also
received fees for prowiding nsk management services to
members

MPS continues to review the transparency of the independence
of its non-executve directors and to prowde appropnate
guidelines for all directors on ther ethical conduct as a director
of MPS To this end, MPS intreduced in 2008, for MPS and its
subsidiary boards, a register of interests and also published
internally a Code of Ethical Conduct for all staff, which will apply
equally to members of the Council

MPS has separate posts of Charman and Chief Executive to
dfferentiate the runming of the Council from the executive
responsibilty for the running of the business The Counci
considers that the non-executve members of the Counctl as a
group are of a sufficient calbre and number to bring strength
and independence to the Council and does not propose to
nominate any one non-execuive to be a senior independent
member of the Council in stating this, the Council recogrises
that this 1s not in accordance with the relevant prowision of the
Combined Code

The normal retirement age for executive members of the Council
1s 65, a change made in 2006, pnor to which normal retirement
age was 60 Transtion provisions have been made for those
within 10 years of retrement at the date of the change This
change prompted a review of the retrement requirements for
non-executives and, i 2007, members voted at the Annual
General Meeting to change the Articles of Association, to remove
any upper age imat for non-executive directors

All Council members, except for the Chief Executive and the
Chairman of Dental Protecton Limited, are subject to
election by members at the fust opportunity after ther
appointment by the Counci and to re-election (excepting the
Chief Executwve and the Charman of Dental Protection
timited) at general meetings at least every three years The
Chief Executive 15 appoinied by the Council and can be
removed by the Council

The Council recognises that not subjecting the Chief Executive
to re-election 1s a departure from the relevant sechion of the
Combined Code, but believes that it does not comprormise the
independence or integrity of the Council The Charman of
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Dental Protection Limited s a member of the Council ex officio,
and 1s elected to the post by the Board of Dental Protection
Limited Directors of Dental Protection Limited are elected by
the shareholder of the company, which 1s MPS and thus the
Councit of MPS has the ability to appomnt and remove directors
of Dental Protection Limited Non-executive members of the
Council are Iimited to an eight-year term

The Council met formally eight tmes dunng the year (eight
ttmes in 2008) In addition to these regular meetings, the
Council also devoted the better part of a day for an addrtional
meeting to consider and review the organisation’s business
objectives and strategy The attendance record of members of
the Council at the eight meetings (eight meetings in 2008) 1s
shown In table 1 below

The Council has a schedule of matters specifically reserved to it
for dectsion, ncluding strategy, financial pelicy and major
acquisitions and disposals All Council members have access
to the adwice and services of the Company Secretary and
procedures exist for any member of the Councl to take
independent advice at MPS's expense

Non-executive members of the Council met once durnng the
year without the executive members and have the prowision to
meet without the executive at any time that such a meeting
may be requred There 15 also the prowvision for the non-
executive members to meet without the Charman and
executive If they wish — this was not thought necessary dunng
2009

Sub-Committees of the Council
The Councl has a Nommations, Remuneration and Audit
Committee, the members of which are listed on page 9

The Nominations Committee I1s chaired by the Charman of the
Council and keeps under review the composition of the Council
and makes recommendations concerning all new appointments
of non-executive members

The Remuneraton Committee 1s chared by the Charrman of the
Council and 1s responsible for making recommendations to the
Council concerning matters relating to remuneration policy See
Remuneration Report below

The Audit Committee s chaired by a non-executve member of
the Council, Frank Attwood, (a former audt partner of an
nternational firm of Chartered Accountants) and met twice in the
year MPS%s external auditors, Charman, Chief Executive,
Finance Diector, Financial Controller and Internal Audit and
Compliance Officer also attend the meetings and the Committee
has an opportumity to meet the external auditors without
management present Other senior managers attend for specific
agenda items as requred The Audit Committee reviews the
adequacy and effectiveness of nsk management and control
systems and reviews the scope and results of the external audt,
its cost effectiveness and the ndependence and objectvty of the
auditers It also reviews, pnor to publication, the annual financial
statements and the other informaticn included In the Annual
Report The Audit Committee also meets annually with, and
reviews the work of, the independent consulting actuanes

TABLE 1 Attendance record of the members of the Council at Council meetngs

Member of Appointed/Retired
the Council

Meetings Attended
2009 2008

Frank Attwood

Kerth Bradley

lan Croxford

Nicholas Davies

Mark Dawvis Appointed on 10 June 2009
Mark Dinwoodie Retired on 10 June 2009
Yasmin Drabu Appomnted on 10 June 2009
Mary Favier
Kathryn Harley
Ta; Hassan

Leela Kapila
Simon Kayll
Kevin Lewis
Ravinder Maini
Tony Mason
Ehzabeth Vallance
Richard Youell

Retired on 10 June 2008
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The attendance record of members of the Audt Committee 1s
shown in table 2 below The Committee meets in March and
November

The Audit Committee s responsible for ensunng the continued
Independence of the external auditors The Committee has a
wntten policy on this, which includes requiring the auditors to
make a statement on ther continued Independence, placing
hmits on the amount of non-audit work undertaken by the
audifors and hawving a policy covenng the commissioning of
non-audit services from the auditors

Several members of the Council are members of the Board of MPI
(London) Limited, which manages MPS’s investment portfolio, and
of the Board of MPS Risk Solutions Limited, which provides
general nsurance contracts to corporate heafthcare providers
Both Boards are chaired by the Chairman of the Council and the
other Council members are listed on page 9

The Role of the Council

The Council's principal focus 1s the overall strategic direction,
development and control of the MPS group In addition, it 1s
also uttimately responsible for the exercising of discretion n
response to requests for assistance In practice, this s
defegated on a daily basis to the executive management and
employees However, the Council 1s spectfically involved in
exercising discretron related to potentially controversial,
axpensive or unusual requests for assistance

In support of the overall strategy, the Council approves the
group's values, strategic plans, annual budget and overalt
system of nsk dentification, management and nternal controls
The Council also has control of the group's operating and
financial performance

The Councd agrees the group’s corporate governance
framework, as part of which it has empowered the man
management committeg, the Executive Committee, who are
responsible for day to day operations

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

The roles of the Charmman and Chef Executive are documented
and the Chaiman, together with the Chief Executve and the
Secretary, are responsible for ensunng that the Councilis kept fully
informed and 1s consulted on issues that are reserved o ¢t and that
decisions are made in a imely manner

Newly appointed members of the Councid are given an
induction appropnate to their level of previous expernence

Board evaluation

The Council undertakes an annual evaluation of its performance
based upon a questionnaire and the invitation for members of
the Council to speak to the Chaman on performance issues
The results of the 2009 evalvation were presented to the
Council by the Charman in its February 2010 meeting and
resulting achons were approved by the Council

Internal control

The Council has overall responsibility for MPS's system of
internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness whilst the
role of management s to implkement the Council’s policies on
nsk and contrel The system 1s designed to manage, rather than
eliminate, the nsk of falure to achieve the business objectives
In purswing these objectives, mternal controls can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance aganst matenal
misstatement or loss

There 15 a continuous process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the signficant nsks faced by MPS in lne with
recornmendations in the ongnal and updated Turnbull report
This has been in place for the full financial year and up to the
date of approval of the Annual Report

The process mvolves the undertaking of regular reviews at
departmental and corporate level From these reviews,
management identifies the key nsks, and determines therr likely
significance based on the probability of the nsk occurning and
its likely tmpact on MPS d it were to do so Management then
determines what action can cost-effectively be taken

TABLE 2 Atiendance record of the members of the Audit Commitiee at Comittee meetings

Member of Appointed/Retired Meetings Attended
Audit Committee 2008 2008
Frank Attwood 2 2
Keith Bradley Apponted on 1 July 2009 1 N/A
lan Croxford Appointed on 1 July 2009 1 NAA
Mark Dinwoodie Retired on 10 June 2009 1 2
Tay Hassan Retired on 10 November 2009 1 2
Leela Kapia 2 2
Ravinder Mamni Retired on 10 June 2009 1 1
Elzabeth Vallance 2 2
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The Council has delegated the function of monitoring the
effectiveness of the system of internal control and of the nsk
managemeant process to the Audit Committee The Chairman
of the Audit Committee reports outcomes of its meetings to
the Council and the Council receives the minutes of all its
meetings In fulfiing its responsibiities to the Council, the
Audit Committee

Discusses with the external auditors their audit approach,
and agrees any particular aspect of internal control or nsk
management to be reviewed by them beyond therr statutory
responsibiities

Discusses with independent consulting actuaries therr
approach to statishcal reserving of reported claims and
potential claims that have yet to be reported

® Considers the results of the external audrtors' work with
them and with management

W Initiates as necessary and considers reports from
management on systems of internal control and on the
effectiveness of nsk management

B Reports the results of its work, with any necessary
recormmendations, to the Council and ensures that actions
required by the Council are implemented One such report i1s
made at the year-end before producing this statement

MPS has an Internal Audit and Complance Officer whose
responsibiities include internal audit Internal audit 1s
concerned with providing assurance over a wide range of
1Issues, including financial, corporate and operational nsks The
Internal Audit and Compliance Officer works closely with the
external auditors and also attends the Audt Committee
meetings

The Audit Commuittee s responsible for monitoring and
reviewing the internal audit function undertaken by the Internal
Audit and Compliance Qfficer The Audit Committee receves
summanes of all internal audit reports, 1s Involved In approving
the annual internal audit plan and 15 able to question the
lnternal Audit and Compliance Officer about his work at each
committee meeting

Rermuneration report

The Remuneraton Committee 18 responsible for
recommending to the Council, fees for members of the
Council, Committees and directors of subsidianes as well as
deciding the remuneration of semior staff and recewing
recommendations from the Chief Executwve for the
remuneration of other employees In framing its policy, the
Remuneration Committee aims to attract and retain senior staff
to run MPS successfully without making excessive payments
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In 2008, MPS, for the first tme, instigated an incentive scheme
paying a modest reward to the nine most senior stafi
{excluding the Chief Executive) based on performance of a
range of criena It remans that the non-executive members of
the Council do not receive any Incentive or performance-
related remuneration Because MPS 1s not a listed company,
this report 15 not required to comply with the rules on
Remuneraticn Reports

Details of the Chief Executive’s and non-executive Counci!
Members' remuneration are included at note 6 to the
accounts

Relations with members

The provisicns of the Combined Code relate to communication
by companes with ther shareholders and thus some of the
details do not apply to the different relationship that MPS has
with its members However, the general tenor of the provisions
15 applicable to MPS and MPS values its dialogue with
members The Councit also uses the Annual General Meeting to
communicate financial performance with members and
encourages therr paricipation Members of the Audit,
Nomination and Remuneration committees will be present at
the Annual General Meeting to respond to any relevant
questions f necessary

The notice for the Annual General Meeting Is sent to members
at least 20 working days before the meeting date

Derwvative financial instruments

Dunng the year, MPS's mnvestment managers held dervatve
financial instuments tc enhance investrnent returns The net
recognised gans and losses resutting from holding these
contracts are ncluded in note 4 under other Investment ncome
These Instruments were held to take advantage of short-term
changes in bond market pnces Dunng the year this was achieved
by entermg into a nurmber of contracts, which involve the purchase
or sale of an underhing asset at a pnce fixed today for delivery at
some date in the future Table 3 below shows the contracts that
were entered into dunng the year

Risk charactenstics of derivative financial instruments
interest rate nsk

MPS’s denvatives are sensitive 1o interest rate movements so it
IS necessary to determine the interest rate nsk that such
contracts willbe exposed to This is done by comparing the nisk
of the underlying asset against the nsk of the denvative For an
asset such as a bond the nsk 1s calculated by muttiptying the
dirty pnce (the pnice of the bond plus accrued interest) of the
bond by its modified duration The bond future nsk 1s then
calculated by multipiyning the bond nsk by a conversion factor
used in the pneng of the contract The bond nsk and future nsk
are then compared to determine the number of futures
contracts that need tc be held
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Credit Risk

Credtt nsk encompasses all forms of counterparty risk MPS
manages this nsk through its investment policy, which sets out
the type and quality of nvestments that can be held and the
maximum exposure to any particular investment Credit nsk 1s
further managed by all such denvative contracts being of short-
term duration

Going concern

Members of the Council consider that MPS has adequate
resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future
and that 1t 15 therefore appropnate to adopt the going concern
basis in prepanng the financial statements Mermbers of the
Gouncil have satisfied themselves that MPS 15 in a sound
financial position

Auditors

Grant Thornton UK LLP, having expressed theirr wilingness to
continue in office, will be deemed reappointed for the next
financial year in accordance with section 487(2) of the
Compares Act 2006 unless the company recenves notice
under section 488(1) of the Companies Act 2006

Statement of the Council's responsibility for the Financia!
Statements

The Council s respansible for preparing the Annual Report and
the financial statements In accordance with applicable taw and
regulations

Company law requies the Councl to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the Council

TABLE 3 Contracts entered into dunng the year

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

have elected to prepare financel statements In accordance
with United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice} The financial
statements are required by law to give a true and far view of
the state of affairs of the group and parent company and of the
profit or foss of the group for that period In preparing these
financial statements, the Council ts required to

& select sutable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently

@ make judgments and estmates that are reasonable and
prudent

# state whether applicable United Kingdom accounting
standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explaned in the financial
statements

@ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless It 1s nappropriate to presume that the company will
continue N business

The Council I1s responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Compantes Act 2006 They are alsc responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
frauct and other wregulanties

Curency  Contract Type Currency  Contract Type

AUD 90 day bank bill JPY 10 year bond future {UR

AUD 3 year bond future JPY 3 month Euroyen TEX

AUD 10 year bond future JPY 10 year bond future (minl JGB)
CHF 3 month bond future ush 5 year note future

EUR Euro-Bobl future UsD 2 year note future

EUR Euro-Bund future Usb 10 year note future

Long Bond future
90 day Euro future

EUR Euro-Schatz future Usp
EUR 3 month Eunbor future UsD
GBP S0 day Sterling future ZAR
GBP Long Gilt future ZAR
JPY 10 year bond future (CBT) ZAR

www medicalprotection org

Bond future
Fixed interest rate swap
Vanable nterest rate swap
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THE MEDICAL PROTECTION SOCIETY LIMITED
REPORT OF THE COUNCIL CONTINUED

In so far as each Council member 1s aware

@ there 1s no relevant audit nformation of which the Company's
auditors are unaware

the Council members have taken all steps that they ought to
have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditors are aware of
that information

The Council 1s responsible for the mantenance and ntegnty of
the corporate and financial information included on the
Company's website Legslatton in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and disserminaton of financial
staterments may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Approval

This report was approved by the Council on 14 Apnl 2010 and
signed on its behalf by

Simon Kayll

Company Secratary
33 Cavendish Square, London, W1G OPS

St Kol
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ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

Independent Auditor’s report

to the Members of The Medical Protection Society Limited

We have audited the financial statements of The Medical
Protection Society Limited for the year ended 31 December
2009 which compnises the consolidated income and
expenditure account, the consoldated and company
balance sheets, the consoldated cash flow statement, the
consolidated statement of total recogrmised gains and
losses and the related notes These financial statements
have been prepared under the accounting policies set out
therein The financial reporting framework that has been
apphed in therr preparation is applicable taw and United
Kingdem Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a
body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Company's members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit
work for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibiliies of the Council and auditors
As explained more fully In the Council’s Responsibilities Statement
set out on pages 23-24, the Council 15 responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and far view Qur responsibiity 1s to audit the
financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and
Internatonal Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland} Those
standards requre us to comply with the Audming Practices
Board's (APB's} Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A descnption of the scope of an audit of financial stalements 1S
provided on the APB's websie at www e org uk/apb/scope/UKNP

Opimion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements

B give a true and far view of the state of the group's and the
parent Company's affars as at 31 December 2009 and of the
net contnbution avalable to meet future kabilities and charges
of the group for the year then ended,

® have been properly prepared In accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

have been prepared in accordance with the requrements of
the Companies Act 2006

www medicalprotection org

Opinton on other matter prescnbed by the Companies Act
2006

In our opinion the nformation given in the Report of Council for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 1S
consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters
where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, n
our opInion

@ adequate accountng records have not been kept by the
parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been receved from branches not wisited by us, or

@ the parent company financial statements are not In agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

B certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law
are nat made, or

we have not recenved all the nformation and explanations we
require for our audrt

{(—— f _(-L.a-—-..ahc-x — b‘—'—‘::?

Andrew Wood

Senor Statutory Audttor

for and on behalf of Grant Thomton UK LLR,
Statutory Audrtor, Chartered Acoountants
Leeds, England

14 Apnil 2010
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THE MEDICAL PROTECTION SQCIETY LIMITED

Financial statements

Year ended 31 December 2009

Notes

14

14

3b
3c

5a

16

26

CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT 2009 2008
Year ended 31 December 2009 £'000 £'000
Income: continuing operations
Members' subscnptions and other mcome 275,650 262,377
Expendsture
Clams costs and associated legal costs (including costs of insurance} 190,873 160,472
Insurance recovenes (19,700) {1,013
Adwvisory costs and associated legal costs 46,806 42 908
Education, publications and external relations 5,461 3,139
Administration expenses 15,640 15,453
Loss/(profit) on exchange movements 12,570 (48,940)
251,650 172,017
Excess of members’ subscriptions and other income over expenditure:
continuing operations 24,000 80,360
Income from investments 29,726 31,415
Other finance {expense)/income ] 467
Realised (losses)/gains from dispesal of investments {14,896) 476
Contribution from ordinary activities before taxation 38,828 112,718
Tax on investment income and gans {79) (16,314)
Net contnbution for the year available to meet future liabilities and charges 38,749 96,404
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ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED 2009 2008
Notes GAINS AND LOSSES £'000 £'000
Net contribution for the financial year 38,749 96,404
15 Surplus/(defict) on revaluation of investments 85,848 {38,592)
15 Dedicit on revaluation of fixed assets (838) (1,763)
8 Actuanal (losses)/gains on defined benefit pension scheme (8,140) 683 |
5a Tax charge on nvestment gains {9,269) (7,073 |
Total recognised gains 116,350 49,659
NOTE OF HISTORICAL COST INCOME 2009 2008
Notes AND EXPENDITURE £000 £'000
Reported net contnbution before tax 38,828 112,718
15 Realsation of valuation gans of previous years 55,477 8,187
i5  Difference between a histoncal cost depreciation charge and the
actual depreciation charge of the year calculated on the revalued amount 29 72 }
Histoncal cost net contnbution before tax 94,334 118977
Histoneal cost net contnbution after tax 84,986 05,500
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THE MEDICAL PROTECTION SOCIETY LIMITED

Financial statements

Year ended 31 December 2009

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY 2009 2008 2009 2008

BALANCE SHEETS GROUP GROUP  COMPANY  COMPANY

Notes At 31 December 2009 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fixed assets

2 Tangble assets 8,606 8,705 8,428 8537

10 Investments 1,296,999 1,132,392 856,011 766,056

1,305,606 1,141,007 864,439 774,593

Current assets

\
1 12 Debtors - due within one year 13,925 5,223 91,615 89,773
| 12 - due after one year 26,714 13,692 26,714 13,692
Bank deposit accounts 88,812 93,895 19,083 16,321
| Cash at bank and in hand 4,073 1,199 3,952 868
133,524 114,109 141,364 120,654
13  Creditors — amounts falling due within one year {50,346) {B4,099) (49,179) {41,143)

|
‘ Net current assets 83,178 50,010 92,185 79,511
‘ Total assets less current habiities 1,388,783 1,191,107 956,624 854,104
14 Provision for labibities (473,854) (398,306} (470,853) {396,064)
Net assets excluding pension (habihty)/asset 914,929 792,801 485,771 458,040
8 Pension (iability)/asset {1,813 3,865 {(1,813) 3,965
Net assets 913,116 796,766 483,958 462,005

15 Accumulated funds

Revaluation reserve 116,099 76,595 191 1,058
Income and expenditure 797,017 720,171 483,767 460,947
16 Funds available to meet future liabilies and charges 913,116 796,766 483,958 462,005

Nicholas Davies -
Chawrrman of the Council A
14 Apnl 2010 ’ e—"

The Medical Protection Society Limited
Registered Company No 38142
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ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 2009 2008
Year ended 31 December 2009 £'000 £°000
Net cash inflow from operating actviies 95,288 90,577
Returns on investment and servicing of finance 29,726 31,415
Taxation {29,721) (10,367)
Acquistion of subsidiary company (267) (243)
Caprtal expenditure and financial nvestment {85,754} (120,537}
(728) (2,155)

Net cash inflow from management of lquid resources
(compnsing bank deposits and nvestrment deposits) 3,602 6,858
Increase/{decrease) in cash in the period 2,874 (2,297)
Analysis of changes in net funds At Cash flow At
1/1/2009 movement  31/12/2009
£000 £'000 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand 1,199 2,874 4,073
Bank deposit accounts 93,985 (5,183) 88,812
Cash with investment managers 11,008 1,581 12,589
Net funds 106,202 (728) 105,474
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds 2009 2008
£'000 £'000
Increaser(decrease) in cash 2,874 (2,297)
Cash flow from decrease in net iquid resources {3,602) (6,858)
(728) (3,155}
Net funds at 1 January 106,202 115,357
Net funds at 31 December 105,474 106,202
29

waww medicalprotection org




THE MEDICAL PROTECTION SOCIETY LIMITED

Notes to the accounts

@)

(b}

(0

(@

(&)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and MPS'’s constitution

Convention
The financial statements include Investrments and freehold property at valuation but n all other respects have been prepared In accordance
with the histoncal cost convention The prncipal accounting policies adopted by MPS within that convention are set out below

Accounting policies

Consohdation

The Group financial statements compnse a consohidation of the financial statements of the parent company (the “Company”) and all
its subsidiary undertakings {together, the "Group”) as at 31 December and as dentified in note 11 As a consalidated income and
expenditure account 1S published, a separate Income and expenditure account for the parent company 1s omitted from the group
financial statements by virtue of Section 408 of the Companigs Act 2008 The parent company net contnbution for the year to 31
December 2009 was £30 9m as shown n note 15

Subscriptions

Subscnption Incomea compnses amounts receivable dunng the year, apportioned to accounting panods on a time basis and stated
at the farr value of the consideration receivable It 1s recognised when the Company has performed its obligations and in exchange
obtaned the nght to consideration No geographical analysis of subscription income 1s shown because, in the opinion of the Council,
it would be seriously prejudicial for the Group to do so

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

All freehold land and buldings are included at valuation Valuations are kept up-to-date Other tangible fixed assets are included at cost
Depreciation 15 provided evenly on the cost (or valuation where appropriate) of tangible fixed assets, to write them daown to their
estimated residual values over ther expected useful Ives Where there 1s evidence of Imparment, fixed assets are witten down to
recoverable amounts Any such write down would be charged to operating profit unless it was a reversal of a past revaluation surplus
i which case it would be taken to the staterment of total recognised gains andlosses  No depreciation 1s provided on freehold land

The principal annual rates used for other assets are

Freshold buldings — 2% per annum

Leasehold property - over Ife of leases

Furniture and fittings - 5% per annum

Cffice equipment — 15% per annum

Computers — 20%, 25% or 33 3% per annum

Translation of foreign currency transactions

Income and expendrture m foreign currencies are translated 1o therr sterling equivalent at the rate ruling at the transaction date
Monetary assets and llabiliies appearing in the balance sheet are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at 31 December or at a
rate fixed in advance by way of a forward exchange contract Any gains or l0sses are taken to the Income and expenditure account,
except for those ansing from investments held in foreign currencies and at valuation, which are taken to the statement of total
recognised gains and losses

Interest recevable and dividends

Interest recevable 1s brought into account on an accruals basis As MPS's equity Investments are in pooled funds and unt trusts,
Income Is renvested rather than distnbuted  Such income 1s therefore INcluded within unrealised gans on INvestments rather than
being recorded in the accounts as dwvidend income

Investments

Listed Investments (which include cash held by the iInvestment managers awarting nvestment) ars included in the balance shest at market
valuation The net surplus or defictt on revaluation 1s credited or charged to the revaluation reserve In accordance with FRS3, on disposal
the proceeds are compared with the canying value and the gain or loss credited o charged to the ncome and expenditure account
Unlisted investments are included In the balance sheet at the lower of therr stering cost or net asset value

Investrents in subsidianes are stated at cost less provision for imparment where necessary 1o reduce book value to recoverable amount
Cost 1s purchase pnee including acquisition expenses, but excluding any payment for accrued nterest or fixed dvdend entitlement
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ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

(@) Denvative financial instruments

(h

0

(K

The Group’s investment managers are permitted to hold denvative financial nstruments to enhance nvestment returns  Denvatives
are held at cost and as such are not far valued through the income and expenditure account

Realised gains and losses ansing as a resutt of holding denvatives are taken directly to the income and expenditure account

Costs and damages for claims of negiigence

Provision s made for estimated future costs and damages, legal costs and claims handing costs expected to anse from daims that
have been notfied to MPS by 31 December In respect of which the Counct has exercised or 1s expected to exercise tts discretion to
provide indemnity The esimate of these costs 1s stated before deckucting estimated recovenies fom insurers, which are disclosed
separately and are recogrised only when it is virtually certain that rembursament will be receved

The discounted future settlement values are deemed to be the best estimate of these costs

No provision 13 made for the potential claims that may anse from incidents that occumed before 31 December but had not been
reported to MPS at that date

Costs related to all other claims
Provision 1s made at discounted future settliement values for estmated future costs, Including handling costs, of these clams that

have been notified to MPS by 31 December In respect of which the Councit has exercised or 1s expected to exercise its discretion
to provide assistance

The discounted future settlement values are deemed to be the best estimate of these costs

No provision 1s made for the potential claims that may anse from incidents that occurred before 31 December but had not been
reported to MPS at that date

Tax
Provision 1s made in the financial statements for tax on nvestment and trading iIncome recerved and recenvable in the year, revaluation
gains and losses recognised in respect of UK and Intemational bonds and on other nvestments disposed of dunng the year

No deferred tax prowision 1s required to be reflected in the financial staterments Whilst there 1s a tming difference ansing between
the accounting and taxation treatment of certam non-monetary assets, i accordance with FR$16, deferred tax 1s not provided on
timing differences ansing from the revaluation of non-monetary assets, where there 1s no binding agreement to sell these assets at
the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply n the periods when the tming differences are expecied o
reverse, based on tax rates and law enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets and habilities
are not discounted

Where law or accounting standards require gains and losses to be recognised In the statement of total racognised gamns and losses,
the related taxation i1s also taken directly to the statement of total recogrised gains and losses n due course

Pensions

MPS operates a defined benefit pension scheme The assets of the scheme are invested and managed ndependently of MPS's
finances The pension scheme assets are measured using market values Pension scheme labilmes are measured using the
projected unit actuanal method and are discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term
and currency to the liabilty Any increase in the present value of habilities within MPS's defined benefit scheme expected to anse from
employee service in the penod is charged 1o operating profit The expected return on the scheme's assets and the increase dunng
the perod in the present values of the scheme's liabiiies ansing from the passage of tme are ndluded I other finance income
Actuanal gaing and losses are recogrised in the consobdated statement of total recogrised gans and losses

Pension scheme surpluses, to the extent they are considered recoverable, or deficits are recogrised n full on the face of the balance sheet

Further iInformation on the structure of the defined benefit scheme is contaned within note 8 to these accounts
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THE MEDICAL PROTECTION SOCIETY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

{d Operating iease agreements
Leases where substantally all of the nsks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group are treated as operating leases
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basts over the penod of the lease

Operating lease incentives are recogrised, on a straight-Ine basis, as a reduction of the rental expense over the shorter of the lease
term and the penod to the first rent review where market rentals will be payable

3a Education, pubtications and external relations
tncluded under this classification are costs associated with developing and delvenng education and nsk management serices 1o

members with the aim of reducing nsk, and haising with regulators, legislators and professional representative bodies around the
world on behalf of members and the wider professions, on matters relevant to MPS and its members

3b Administration expenses 2009 2008
£'000 £'000

Included under this classification are
Operating lease rentals - Land and buldings 2173 1,751
— Motor vehicles 99 0
- Office equipment 41 36
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets 6 40
Depreciation of fixed assets 1,591 g10

Audttor’s remuneration
Services to the Company and its subsicharies

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the annual financial statements 59 60
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and ts associates for other services

— Audtt of the financial statements of the Company's subsidianes pursuant to legisiation 12 12
- Other services relating to taxation — compliance and advice 64 79
Services to the Company's associated pension scheme

- Audit of the financral statements of the scheme pursuant to legislation 5 4

3¢ Exchange movements

The majornty of the losses on exchange movements relate to the restatement of nternational bonds and cash assets held to match
international labities These losses are substantially offset by a comesponding decrease In international claim habilies, which are
included In costs within the mcrease in the overall clams provisions (note 14)

4 Net income from investments 2009 2008
£°000 £'000

Bond and gitt interest 26,461 24,608
Bank interest 1,862 4,865
Other investment income 1,403 1,942
29,726 31,415

Other investment income includes realised losses ansing from dervative financial nstruments, which are discussed in more detail In
the Report of the Council on pages 22-23

As noted In 2(e), dmdend income from MPS's equity investments 1s not distnbuted but 15 reinvested and included in unrealised gains
on investments rather than as investment Income
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ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

5a Tax on mcome and gains from investments 2009 2008
£000 £000
Tax on income and gans included in the mcome and expenditure account for the year
UK corporation tax
Current tax on Income and gains for the year at 28% (2008 30%/28%) 111 16,209
Adustment in respect of pnor years (52) 89
Double taxation relief 9) (14)
50 16,284
Foreign tax
Current tax on income for the year 29 30
Tax on investment iIncome and gains in the iIncome and expenditure account 79 16,314
Tax on other gains included n the statement of total recogmsed gains and losses
for the year
UK corporation tax
Current tax charge on gains for the year at 28% (2008 30%/28%) 9,269 7073
Tax on other gains included in the statement of total recognised gains and losses
for the year 9,269 7,073
5b Factors affecting tax charge for the year
Current tax reconciliation
Differences between the current tax charge for the penod and the expected tax charge 2009 2008
based on the current rate of 28% (2008 28%)} are explaned below £'000 £'000
Contnbution before tax per accounts 38,828 112,718
Less non-taxable contnbution (see below) (39,549) {41.437)
Incerme and net losses from investments included in the
income and expendrture account for the year (721) 71,281
income and net losses from mvestments multtiplied by the
standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 28% (2008 28%) (202) 19,959
Effects of
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances 5 7
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes - 69
Loan relationship losses brought forward - {4,390}
Double tax rehef ) (14)
Adustment in respect of pnor years (52) 89
Effects of standard tax rate change - 354
Tax on income from unisted INnvestments not yet recognised 308 210
Current tax charge for the year 50 16,284

The non-taxable contnbution above ts the surplus of members' subsenption ncome over related expanditure, which, due to MPS's
mutual status, 1s not subject to corporation tax
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THE MEDICAL PROTECTION SOCIETY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

5c Unprovided deferred taxation

A £14 1 million (2008 £3 7 miflion} tax charge would anse should MPS's equity investments and freehold property be sold at the
market values at which they are included n the balance sheet

6 Emoluments of members of the Council 2009 2008
£'000 £'000

Aggregate amount of emoluments paid to members of the Council
(including executive members) 977 887
Chairman 51 48

Highest paid member of the Council

Chief Executive - standard emoluments and taxable henefits 254 245
- bonus 28 -
- accrued annual defined benefit pension nghts 5 2
- employer contributions to defined contnbution pension scheme 24 28

There are 3 (2008 3) executive members of the Councll who are members of MPS's defined beneft pension scheme, detals of
which are set out In note 8

The standard remuneration for all non-executve members of the Counail (other than the Chairman) was £12,495 {2008 £18,925)
An ncrease of £570 per annum was implemented on 1 March 2009 The following members of the Council, who were members of
other Boards and Committees, received additional remuneration as detatted below

Council Member Additional Remuneraton (£) Council Member Addstional Remuneration (£)
fFrank Attwood 14,096 Kathryn Harley 19,330
Kerth Bradley 1,185 Tay Hassan 7,931
lan Croxford 1,185 Leela Kapia 4,717
Mark Davis 1,185 Ravinder Mani 2,081
Mark Dinwoodie 2,0 Elizabeth Valance 2,358
Mary Favier 2,358 Rechard Youel 2,358

In addition, and as stated in the Report of the Council on page 19, 1 member of the Council received fees for prowding advice to
MPS on the management of three clams, 1, before retinng from Councd In June, recenved fees for providing nsk management
services to members and 5 had personal membership of MPS

7 Employees

The average number of pecple emploved by the Group and the Company dunng the year was 382 (2008 333)

Costs in respect of these employees were 2009 2008
£'000 £'000

Wages and salanes 17,344 14,539
Social secunty costs 1,711 1,463
Pension costs 1,985 2,385
21,100 18,387
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ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

8 Pensions

MPS operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme, The MPS Pension Scheme The scheme funds are administered by
Trustees and are indspendent of MPS's finances Contnbutions are pad to the scheme in accordance wrth the Schedule of

Contnbutons agreed between the Trustees and MPS

The last full actuanal valuabon as at 31 Decernber 2008 was updated to the accounting date by an independent qualified actuary n
accordance with FRS17  As required by FRS17, the value of the defined benefit labiitties has been measured using the progcted unit method

The following tables set out the key FRS17 assumptions used for the scheme The tables also set out, as at the accounting date,
the far values of the assets, analysed by asset class, the present value of the scheme liabilties and the resutting pension deficit

FRS17 requires that this deficit be shown as “Pension liability” on the face of the balance sheet

Prnncipal actuanal assumphons At 31 December

2009

% pa
Pnce nflation 38
Discount rate 5.6
Pension increases (LPt 5%! 3.7
Pension increases (LP1 3%} 2.8
Salary growth 5.3
Expected return on assets at start of year 5.8

At 31 December
2008
% pa

On the basis of the assumptions used for Ife expectancy, a male pensioner currently aged 60 would be expected to Ive for a further

28 1 years (2008 28 C years) Allowance 1s made for future improvernents in life expectancy

Balance sheet At 31 December At 31 December
2009 2008

£'000 £'000

Defined benefit obligation 57,495 40,987
Farr value of scheme assets {65,682) (44,952)
Pension hability/{asset) in the balance sheet 1,813 (3.965)
The current allocation of pension At 31 December At 31 December
scheme assets 1s as follows 2009 2008
% £'000 % £'000

Equities 60 33,420 51 22,681
Bonds 19 10,701 23 10,315
Liability drven investment 19 10,767 24 10,920
Property 1 595 1 635
Cash 1 189 1 401
Total 100 55,682 100 44 952
The following amounts are recognised 2009 2008
the iIncome and expenditure account £'000 £'000
Current serice cost 1,892 2,279
Interest cost 2,662 2,607
Expected retum on pension scheme assets (2,660) (3.074)
Total expense recogrised in income and expenditure account 1,804 1,812

Within the Income and expendrture account, cument service costs are recogrised within administration expenses, and the net of
Interest costs and the expected retum on pension scheme assets s recognised as other finance {expense)income  For 2009 this

was an expense of £2,000, and for 2008, an income of £467,000
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THE MEDICAL PROTECTION SOCIETY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

8 Pensions: continued

The defined benefit obligation moved over the year as follows 2009 2008

£'000 £:000
Opening defined benefit obligation 40,987 44,831
Current service cost 1,892 2,279
Interest cost 2,662 2,607
Contributions by scheme members 587 500
Actuanal losses/{gans) 12,618 (8,286}
Benefits paid {1,251) (944)
Closing defined benefit cbhigation 57,495 40,987
The fair value of the scheme assets moved over the year as follows 2003 2008

£'000 £°000
Opening fair value of scheme assets 44,952 47,672
Expected return on scheme assets 2,660 3,074
Actuarial gains/losses) 4,478 {7,603)
Contnbutions by the employer 4,256 2,253
Contnbutions by scheme members 587 500
Benefits paid {1,251) 944y
Closing fair value of scheme assets 55,682 44,852
The actual return on scheme assets was 7,138 {4,529)

Over the year to 31 December 2008, MPS made contnbutions of £4,255,601 (2008 £2,252,737) to the scheme It has been agreed
that future employer contnbutions will be at a rate of 16% of pensionable salanes for 80" scale members, 23% of pensionable
salanes for other scale members and a further £1,500,000 pa to fund the defict revealed as part of the 2008 valuation Gontributions
will be rewiewed {ollowing the completion of the next actuarial valuation due as at 31 December 2011

The following amounts are recognised in the 2009 2008
statement of total recognised gains and losses £°000 £°000
Actuanal losses/(gains) 8,140 683)
Five year history 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Defined benefit obligaton 57,495 40,987 44,831 43,654 39,451
Farr value of scheme assets (55,682) (44,952) (47.672) (43.211) (38,191)
Deficit/(surplus) 1,813 (3,965) (2,841} 443 1,260
Expenence adjustments on scheme liabilities 385 - - 814 -
Expenence adustments on scheme assets {4,478) 7,803 {768) {1,595) {3,554)
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9 Tangible fixed assets Freehold Leasehold Computers, Motor Total
property property furniture, fithngs vehicles
and office
equipmennt
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Group
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2009 5,000 1,570 7,178 - 13,748
Addtions 309 438 1,564 25 2,336
Disposals - - 210 - (210)
Revaluation (959 - - - {959)
At 31 December 2009 4,350 2,008 8,532 25 14,915
Depreciation
At 1 January 2008 - 437 4,606 - 5,043
Prowided in year 121 229 1,239 2 1,591
Released on disposals - - (204) - (204)
Released on revaluation (121) - - - (121)
At 31 December 2009 - 666 5,641 2 6,309
Net book value
At 31 December 2009 4,350 1,342 2,891 23 8,606
At 31 December 2008 5,000 1,133 2,572 - 8,705
Company
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2009 5,000 1,515 6,957 - 13,472
Additions 309 426 1,503 25 2,263
Disposals - - (208) - (208}
Revaluation (959) - — - (959}
At 31 December 2009 4,350 1,941 8,252 25 14,568
Depreciation
At 1 January 2009 - 436 4,490 - 4,935
Provided in year 121 225 1,181 2 1,529
Released on disposals - - (203) - {203)
Released on revaluation (121) - - - (121)
At 31 December 2009 - 661 5,477 2 6,140
Net book value
At 31 December 2009 4,350 1,280 2,775 23 8,428
At 31 December 2008 5,000 1,679 2,458 - 8,537

All the leasehold properties held at 31 Decembier 2009 are short leaseholds

www medicalprotection org 37




THE MEDICAL PROTECTION SOCIETY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

10

Tangible fixed assets: continued

Assets included at valuation

The freehold property was onginally revalued on 31 December 1999 on the basis of the Existing Use Value including notional directly
attnbutable acquisttion costs The valuation was independent and external and was camed out by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung,
Chartered Surveyors, in accordance wrth the Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Royal Insttute of Chartered Surveyors In the
mtervening penod further full and intenm valuations have been carmed out by the above Chartered Surveyors in accordance with
FRS15, Tangible Fixed Assets The last full valuation was camed out on 31 December 2008

If the freehold property had not been revalued & would have been inciuded in the balance sheet at the folowing amount

£'000
Cost 5281
Depreciation {1,121)
At 31 December 2009 4,160
At 31 December 2008 3,943

Capital commitments
Capital expenditure approved and contracted for amounted to £ ril (2008 £ni)

Investments 2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group  Company Company
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Valuation or cost at 1 January 1,132,392 1,015,393 766,056 31,009
Additions and increase IN nvestment in subsidiary undertakings 645,339 337,910 90,267 735,610
Disposals at carrving value (566,817) (220,3186) (45) -
Provision for impaiment of nvestment in subsidiary undertakings - - (267) (563)
Movement in cash 1,581 3,758 - -
Foreign exchange (fosses)/gains on listed investments (11,344) 34,239 - -
Surplus/{defict) on revaluation of histed rnvestments 95,848 (38,592) - -
At 31 December 1,296,999 1,132,292 856,011 766,056
Investments compnse
Usted on UK Stock Exchange
- Equities 105,604 81,434 - -
— Government and other bonds 688,532 657,255 - -
Listed on overseas Stock Exchanges
- Equrties 182,276 126,223 - -
— Government and other bonds 229,014 221,443 - -
Underlying assets listed on multiple Stock Exchanges 40,508 - - -
Unlisted 38,476 35,029 - -
Shares in group undertakings - - 856,011 766,056
Cash 12,589 11,008 - —
1,296,999 1,132,392 856,011 766,056
Histoncal cost of investments 1,155,646 1,020,066 856,011 766,056
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11 Investment in subsichary undertakings

MPS has the following interests n subsidiary undertakings

Parent and group interest Cost of parent Country of
Name in ordinary shares and investment mcorporation Nature
voting nghts £1000 or registration of business
To manage the advisory and
Dental Proteciion 100% - England administrative affars of the dental
Limited
dwision of MPS
MP! (Londor) Limited 100% 845,001 England Tomanage the investment
portfolio
To manage the administrative
DPL ﬁtﬁf{:;a Pty 100% - Austraia affars of Dental Protection
Lmited in Austraha
The provision of general
MPS Risk Solutions o nsurance contracts to
Limited 100% 11.000 England organisations i the healthcare
sector
MPS Penodicat
Payments Trustee 100% - England Corporate Trustee
Lirmted
MPS Holdings Australia o
Pty Limited 100% 10 Australta Holding company
To provide communication skalls
The Cognitive
and nsk management traning to
0, -
Gonsutting Group 100% Australia healthcare professionals in
Pty bimited Australia

“Indirectly owned by MPS
All the above subsidianes operate in their country of incorporation or registration

MPS Risk Consulting Limited, a previously 100% owned subsidiary, was dissolved on 12 May 2009 The carrying value of the
parent company investrent of £45,000 was released on disposal as shown in note 10
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13

14

2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group  Company Company
Debtors £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Receivable within one year
Carporation tax 215 - - -
Trade debtors 356 410 45 -
Recoverable insurance claims 8,905 1,521 8,905 1,521
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 78,862 85,081
Other debtors 760 333 201 276
Prepayments 3,689 2,959 3,602 2,915
13,925 5,223 91,615 89,773
Receivable after one year
Recoverable insurance claims 26,714 13,692 26,714 13,882
Total debtors 40,639 18,915 118,329 103,465
2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group  Company Company
Creditors: amounts falling due £'000 £'000 £°000 £000
within one year
Corporation tax - 20,158 1,832 3
Other taxes and social secunty 1,367 1,084 1,326 1,050
Other creditors and accruals 10,997 9,576 9,482 7,750
Deferred subscyption Income 37,982 33,271 36,539 32,312
50,346 84,099 49,179 41,143
Reported Reported Clams Total
neghgence other handiing clams
clams clams
Provision for habirties £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Group
At 1 January 2009 354,963 27,170 16,173 398,306
Movements in the year
~ Charged to the ncome and expenditure account
— Reported negligence clams 180,046 - 10,827 190,873
- Reported cther claims - 29,538 17,268 46,806
Paid (117,024 (22,559) (22,548) (162,131)
At 31 Pecember 2009 417,985 34,149 21,720 473,854
Company
At 1 January 2009 352,828 27,170 16,066 396,064
Movements in the year
— Charged to the income and expenditure account
— Reported neghgence clams 179,171 - 10,785 189,956
— Reported other clams - 29,538 17,268 46,806
Paid (116,872) (22,559) [22,542) {161,973)
At 31 December 2009 415,127 34,149 21,577 470,853
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14 Provision for habiities: continued

The reported negligence clams provision s the esbtmated discounted future settternent vatues for damages and legal costs in respect
of all negligence clams notified by 31 December The reported other claims provsion 1s the estimated discounied future settlement
value of legal costs relating to these clams notified by 31 December The clams handing provision is the estimated internal cost of
managing all reported clams to conclusion

The sming of ndndual claim payments s uncertan, as they are the subject of Iihgation

The reported negligence claims provision I1s stated before insurarce recovenes of £33 4m (2008 £15 2m) that are estimated to be
recoverable from MPS's insurers

Although FRS12 requires that the unwinding of the discount within a provision be shown separately, 1t 1s not considered practical for
these prowsions, due to the complextties of the many actuanal calculations involved

Revaluation Income and Accumulated
reserve expenditure
15 Movement on reserves £'000 £'000 £'000
Group
At 1 January 2009 76,585 720,171 796,766
Surplus on revaluation of listed investrments 95,848 - 95,848
Defictt on revaluation of fixed assets {838) - {838)
Realised on disposal of mvestments (55,477) 55,477 -
Actuanal losses recognised N pension scheme - 8.140) (8,140}
Tax charge on recogrused Invesiment gamns - (8,269) (9,269)
Release of depreciation on revalued property (29) 29 -
Net contnbution for the year after tax - 38,749 38,749
At 31 December 2009 116,099 797,017 913,116
Company
At 1 January 2009 1,058 460,947 462,005
Deficit on revaluation of fixed assets (838) - (838)
Actuanal losses recognised in pension scheme - 8.140) (8,140)
Release of depreciztion on revalued property (29 29 -
Net contnbution for the year after taxation - 30,931 30,931
At 31 December 2009 191 433,767 483,958
2009 2008
16 Reconciliation of movements in funds £'000 £'000
available to meet future habilities and charges
Net contribution for the financial year 38,749 96,404
Other recognised gains/(iosses) relating to the year 86,870 (32.672)
Tax charge on investment gains {9,269) (7.073)
Tota! recognised gains 116,350 49,659
Opening funds available to meet future habilittes and charges 796,766 747,107
Closing funds available to meet future habilites and charges (see note 21) 913,116 796,766
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2009 2008
17 Reconcihation of excess of iIncome over £'000 £000
expenditure to operating cash flows
Excess of Income over expenditure 24,000 80,360
Depreciation charges 1,591 810
toss on disposal of tangible fixed assets 6 40
Increase N provisions 75,548 51,911
(Increase)/decrease in debtors {21,509) 298
Increase/(decrease} In credtors 6,672 (8,729)
Foraign exchange losses/(gans) on listed mvestments 11,344 (34,239)
Cash pension contnbutions (more)/ess than
current service cost and past service gain {2,364) 26
Net cash inflow from operating activities 95,288 90,577
2009 2008
18 Returns on investment and servicing of finance £'000 £'000
Interest receved 1,862 4865
Bond and gtit nterest receved 26,461 24,608
Gther interest 1,403 1,942
Net cash inflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance 29,726 31.415
2009 2008
19 Capital expenditure and financtal investment £000 £'000
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (2,336} (3.455)
Purchase of investments {645,339) (337.910)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets - 36
Proceeds from sale of investments 551,921 220,792
Net cash outflow from capital expenditure and financial investment {95,754) (120,537)
2009 2008 2009 2008
Group Group  Company Company
20 Commitments £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Operating lease commitments
Land and buldings, leases expinng
— Two to five years 1,343 1,324 1,343 1,324
— Greater than five yesars 1,063 815 1,063 815
2,406 2,139 2,406 213
Motor vehicles, leases expinng
— Within one year 2 4 2 4
— Two to five years 12 10 12 10
14 14 14 14
Office equipment, leases expinng
- Within cne year - 9 - 8
- Two to five years 49 24 49 24
49 33 49 33

MPS has guaranteed that its subsidianes have adequate resources to meet ther katilmes as they fali due

MPS has 1ssued a ietter of credn to MPS Risk Solutions Limited in the sum of £20 mullion
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21 Potential claims that have not yet been reported
Unreported incidents up to 31 December may give nse to clams in the future These potential dams, which do not constitute a
conungent liabilty because recognition of the liability 1s dependent on the Council exercising its discretion, wilk, to the extent to which
the Council exercises that discretion, become MPS's responsibility under the occurence basis of cover MPS provdes The funds
on the balance sheet at 31 December 2009 are more than sufficient to cover the cost of these potential claims based on an actuanal
assessment prepared by an independent fimm of consulting actuanes and detailed In a repont prepared In accordance with the
Guidance Mote "General Insurance Business Actuanal Reports, (GN12)” published by the Faculty of Actuanes and Institute of
Actuanes

22 Obhigations of Members

MPS has the nght to call each year for additional funds from its members up to an amount equal o the annual subscnption

23 Guarantee

MPS 15 lirrutedd by guarantee not exceeding £1 per member
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FProfessional advisers

Investment Managers

State Street Global Advisers Limited
25 Bank Street

London

E14 SNU

Investec Asset Management SA
36 Hans Stnidom Avenue
Foreshore

Cape Town 8001

South Afnca

AlllanceBernsten Limited
1 Mayfar Place

London

Wi1X 8JJ

Macquane Caprtal Funds (Europe) Limited
Level 35, CityPant

1 Ropemaker Street

London

EC2Y SHD

Macguane Capitat Funds Limited
125 West 55th Street

Level 22

New York

NY 10018

United States of Amenca

Newton Investrment Management Ltd
Bank of New York Mellon Centre
160 Queen Victona Street

London

EC4V 4LA

BlackRock Asset Management ireland Ltd
JP Morgan House

International Financial Services Centre
Dublin 1

Ireland
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Solicitors

MPS retains a panel
of over 40 law firms
around the world to
provide advice to
members

Audtors

Grant Thornton UK LLP
No 1 Whitehall Riverside
Whitehall Road

Leeds

LS1 4BN

Actuarnes

Lane Clark & Peacock LLP
30 Old Burlington Street
London

W18 3NN

Insurance Brokers

Miller Insurance Services Limited
Dawson House

5 Jewry Street

London

EC3N 2PJ

Bankers
Barciays Bank plc
1 Churchill Place
London

E14 5HP

HSBC Bank plc

Yorkshire Corporate Banking Centre
4" Floor, City Paint

29 King Street

Leeds

LS21 2HL
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Dental Protection
Limited

33 Cavendish Square
London, Wi1G OPS
United Kingdom

Tel +44 (0)20 7399 1400
Fax +44 (0)20 7399 1401

Granary Wharf House
Leeds, LS11 5PY
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Tel +44 (0)113 243 6436
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39 George Street
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Cognitive Consulting
Group Pty Limited
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Brisbane, Queensland
4064 Australia
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